Altran Technologies India Private Limited

Financial statements

for the year ended 2023-24



Altran Technologies India Private Limited
Balance Sheet as nt March 31, 2024
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Altran Technologies India Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024
(AN amounts are in INR Millions, unless othenwise stated)

Vi

Vit

viil

Revenue from operations
Other income
Tofal income (§+{1)

Eapenses

Employee benefits expense

Iinance costs

Deprecialion and amoutisation expense
Other expenses

‘Totn] expenses (1Y)

Profit before tax (111-1V)

Tax expenses

Current tax

Deferred tax

Total tax expenses (V1)

Profit / {lnss) for the year (V-¥])

Other comprehensive income (OCT)

Ttems that may be reclassified fo profit or loss

(1) Gain 7 (loss) on cash Now hedges

(i) Incame lax effect

Net other comprehensive income that will be
reclassified to profit or loss

Items that will not be reclassificd to profit or loss
(i) Remeasurement gain of defined benehr plans

(1) neome (ax effect
Net other enmprehensive income not to he
reclassified to profit or loss

Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year

Lnmings per equily share (EPS)

- Basic camings per share of ace value of Rs 10/ each (in INR)
- Diluted camings pet share of face value of Rs 10/- each {in INR)

For the year ended

For the year ended

Nute March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
§712.32 6.513 76
15 270.81 9117
5983.13 6.635.13
16 2040 74 345308
17 2238 19,87
k) 11990 123 58
I8 2,322.90 245027
£.405.02 6,052.67
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19 ’
13 41 10117
15.15 109.65
149.56 27082
42765 36
; 028
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- 018
(0.25 15.54
(2.58) (281
767 1273
43532 324.55_
a0
466 140
4.60 340
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Altran Technologies India Private Limited
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2024

(All amounts arc in INR Millions, unless otherwise stated)
Cash flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method. whereby profit for the period 15 adjusted for the effects of tansactions of 2 non-cash
nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipt or payments and item of incame or expensc assaciated with
investing or financing cash-flows. The cash flows (fom operating, investing and linancing activities of the Company arc scgregated. For
the purpase of presentation in the statement of cash flows. cash and cash cquivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with
financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with oviginal maturities of thrce months or less that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant tisk of changes in value.

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 NMarch 31,2023
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax 577.21 58246
Adjustments for:
Interest under MSMED Act, 2006 0.70 2.27
Interest expense on income Lax 1233 1.59
Interest on lease liability 9.38 16.01
Interest income on deposils (1.92) (2.74)
Interest income on financial assets at amortized cost (0.21) (4.13)
Rental expenses (Ind AS 109 Ad)) 2.02 -
Adjustment for unrealised exchange fluctuation (1.44) 223
Gain on lease modilications 6.11) (4.30)
Loss/(Gain) on salc of mutual fund (90.84) (25.57)
Loss/(Gain) on fuir value measurement (6GR.95) (40.80)
Depreciation and amortization 119.90 128.55
Loss/(Gain) on salc of property. plant and equipment (1.3 2.06
ESOP subscription plan and performance plan charge (Refer note 32) 16.58 16.61
Allowance / (reversal) for doubtiul debts 3.52 (3.04)
Liabilitics no longer required, written back (43.58) -
527.23 671.20
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
(Increase) / Decreasc in Trade reccivables (65.806) (52.93)
{Increase) / Decerease in Other current and non-current financial assets 19.43 625
(Increase) / Decrease in Other current and non-current asscts 257.23 41.21)
Increase / (Deercase) in Trade payables (72.67) (21.08)
Increase / (Decrease) in Current and non-current provisions 7.35 32.69
Increase / {Decrease) in Other current and non-current financial Habilities 16,04 (52.44)
Increase / (Decrease) in Other curtent and non-curtent liabilities (36.51) 40.98
Cuash generated from operations 652.24 583.46
Income taxes receivedi(paid) 310,28 (311.59)
Net cash inflow / (outlTlow) from operating activities (A) 962.52 271.87
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (55.49) (11071)
Proceeds from sale of property. plant and equipment 2.64 1.57
Purchase of mutual funds (4.647.77) (3.029.85)
Pracceds from sale of mutual funds IR1L70 2.473.04
Interest received on (ixed deposils 111 2.72
Proceeds from ¢ (Amount invested in) tixcd deposits 1.31 2.72
Net cash outflow hrom investing activities (B) (886.50) (660.51)
Cash tlows from linancing activities
Interest on leasc obligations (9.35) (16.01)
Repayment of leasc liability (47.38) (79.20)

Net cash (outtlow) from financing activities (O (56.73) (95.21)




Altran Technologies India Private Limited
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2024

(AN anrounts are in INR Millions, unless otherwise siated)

Cosh Mow Statement (continued)

For the year ended
Mareh 31, 2024

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

Netincrease / (decrease) in eash ond cash equivalents {A+B+()) 1029 {483 83)
Cash and cash eqmivalents at the bemnming of the yeau 23464 705 49
Cush and cash equivalents at the end of the yenr 240,93 221.64
Compunents of cash und cash equivalents (Refer note 4a))

Balanees with banks

- 10 current accounls 23719 040
-t EEFC accoums 1387 7176
- in deposit accounts 203.27 14348
Cash and cush equivalents ot the end of (he year 240.93 221.64

Non~osh finnncing and investing setivities

Particulurs For the yeor ended For the year cnded
March 31, 2024 Mureh 31,2023
Acaquiginon of right-of-use assets (Refer note 3 (d)) 24.00 10074

The sccompanying notes are forming part of the financial statcurents

This 15 the Statement of Cash Flows veferred to tn our report of even date

For Price \Waterhouse Chartered Accountints L1.P Forand on hehalf of the Bourd of Direceurs
(Rerstration No. FRN 01223 IN N300016; Altran Technologics Indin Private Limited
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Altran Technologics India Private Limited
Statement of changes in equity (SOCIE) for the year ended March 31, 2024

(AN amounts are in INR Millions. unless atherwise staed)

Equity share capiral

(1) Current regorting vear

Balrnce at the beginnlng of the curvent year

917.08

Changes in
equity shary
capitil during

the current yeny

Balance of the
end of the
current yoRr

917.08

{2) Previous reporiing year

Bulunce ut the beginning of the previous year

Changes in
cquity share
capitnl during
the previous

Balance at the|
end of the
previous year

VCNr|
91708 - 217 08
Other equiry
{1) {Current reporting year
Reserves und Surphes
Share based
Sceurities payment] Retamned Cash Now
I General Reserve resene] Ennmngs) heduing resen e Total
Halance at the begimming ol the current year V.45 44 15310 2094 103.66 10.221 14
Oiher Comprehensive lwone Fer the current year . - - 7.67 767
Profit for Ihe vear - 42765 - 42765
ESOP Subseeiplion plan charge for the year treler nute 32) - - 16 S8 - 16 58
|Bnlmcc at the end of the current vear 9,945.44 153.10 371.52 538.98 10.675.04
{2) Previous year
Reserves and Surplus
Share based
Sccuiines [paymiear Retained  [Cash (Tow
Premium Cieneral Reserve [resenve Earnungs Jhedgng reseive Il

Bulance &t the hegnning of the previons year 9.945 41 15310 433 | 122071} (0 I18) 9.581 .98
Diher Comprehensive Income Tor the PIEVICHIK year - - 12,73 0.18 1291
Profin for the pres ivtis yeae - . Jrtod - 1164
ESOPR Subseniption plon charae Tiw the yoor (refer note 32) - . 16.61 - . 1661
Balunce at the enil of the previous yeor 9.945.44 153.10 20.94 103.66 - 10.223.14

The accompanyime notes are formsimg past of the nancinl statcimenis,

This is the Statemen of Clianges in Equity referred to in vur repoit of even Jate
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Altran Technologies India Private Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are m INR Millions, unless olherwise stated)

Company overview

Altran Technologics India Private Limited (*Altran® or “the Company™) is a private limited company incorporated on January 2,
1996 under the provisions of the Companies Act with registered oflice at Bangalore and was a wholly owned subsidiary of Altran
(Singapore) Pte Lid. On 7th June, 2023 Capgemini Technology Services [ndia Limited signed share purchase Agrecment with
Alran (Singapore) Pte Lid and Capgemini SE and acquired 100% shares of the company, On Scptember 26. 2023, the
Company’s registered office was shified 10 Mumbai, Maharashtra from Rangalore, Karnataka. The Company is engaged in
providing engincering consultancy services to Altran /Capgemini Group entities and external customers, The Company caters to
the engincering needs of a broad spectrum of industries like aerospace. delence, automotive, infiastructure and transportation,
media, railway, telecom, financial services ete. The financial statements were authorised for issuance by the Company’s Board of
Dircctors on 16th July 2024,

Thesc are Standalone financial statements of the company. The Company is exempted from preparation of consolidated financial
statements in accordance with puragraph 4(a) (iv) of Ind AS | 10, as the Company is wholly owned subsidiary of Capgemini
Technology Services India Limited. which files consolidated financial statements with the Registar of Companics.

Statement of compliance and basis ol prepuaration

These linancial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 20135 notificd under Section 133 of Companies Act. 2013 (“the Act”) and other
relevant provisions of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as amended fram time to tme.
These financial statements have been prepared on histotical cost basis, except for defined benefit plans and certain linancial
instruments which are measured al fair value or amortised cost at the end of cach reporting period. Historical cost is generally
based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services. Fair value is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to wansfer a liability in an orderly tansaction between market participants at the measurement
date,

New and amended standards adopted by the Company:

The Ministry ol Corporale Affairs vide notilication dated 31 March 2023 notilicd the Companiex (Indian Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2023, which amended centain accounting standaids. and are effective | April 2023,

* Disclosure of accounting policies - amendments o Ind AS 1
* Definition of uccounting estimates - amendnients (o Ind AS §
* Delorred tax related 10 assets und liabilities arising from a single tansaction - wmendments (o Ind AS 12

The other amendments to Ind AS nolilied by these rules are primarily in the nature of clarifications. These amendments did not
have any material impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods and ate not expected to significantly affect the current or
luture periods,

Functional currency and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary cconomic environment
in which the entity operates (“the functional cureency™. The financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is
the Company”s functional and presentation currency, and all values are rounded o the nearest million, except olherwisc stated.

Current-non-current classilication

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheel based on eurrent? non-current classification
A assetis classificd as curent when it satisfics any of (he following criteria:

a) Itis expected to be realised or intended 1o sold or consumed in normal operating cyele

b) It is held primarily for the purpose of trading,

¢) [tis expected to be realised within twelve months afier the reporting period, or

d) Cash or cash cquivalent unless restricted Irom being exchanged or used 1o settle a liability for at least twelve months afler the
reporting period.

Current assets include the current portion of non-current assets, All other asscls are classified as non-current,
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Altran Technologics India Private Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in TNR Millions, unless atherwise stated)

Statement of compliance and basis of preparation (continued)
Current—non-current classification (continued)
A lability is current when it satisties any ol the following criteria;

a) Itis expeeted o be settled in normal operanng cycle

b) I is held primarily for the purpose of Lrading

€) Ttis duc to be settled within twelve months afler the reporting period. or

d) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at [east twelve months after the reporting period.

Current liabilities include the current portion of non-current liabilities. The Company classifics all other liabilitics as non-current
Deferred tax asscls and liabilitics arc classified as non-current assets and Habilitics,

The operating cyele is the (ime between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisalion in cash and cash cquivalents.
The Company has identificd twelve months as its operating cyele

Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in confarmity with Ind AS requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and reported amounts of assets and labilities, vevenue and
expenses and disclosure of contingent liabilitics at the date of the financial statements and the results of operations during the
reporting period. Examples of such cstimates include estimates of provision (or taxes. cinployee benefit plans. provision for
doubtiul debts and advances and estimated uselul life of propeity, plant and equipment. Although these estimates are based on
management’s best knowledge of current events and aclions, actual results could differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions arc reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting eslimates are recognized in the
period in which the estimates are revised and in any fature periods aftected. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognised
prospectively in current and future periods,

() Intpairment of non-financial asscls

The canying amounts ol the Company’s non-financial asscts, ather than deferred tax assets, arce teviewed at the end of cach
reporting period to determine whether there is any indication of impaitment. If any such indication cxists, then the asset's
recoverable amount is estimaled

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating wnil (*CGU) is the greater of its value in use and its Tair value less costs to
scll. Tn assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU. For the purpose of'
impaivment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are combined together into the smallest Company of assets that
generates cash inflows rom continuing usc thal are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assels of Company’s of
assets ("CGU™).

Market related information and estimates are used Lo determine the recoverable amount. Key assumptions on which management
has bascd its determination of recoverable amount include estimated long term growth rates, weighted average cost ol capital and
estimated operating margins. Cash flow projections take into account past expetience and represent management’s best cstimate
about future developments,

(b) Estimation ot delined benefits and compensated leave of absence

The present value of the gratuity and leave encashment obligation are determined using actuarial valuattons. An actuarial
valuation involves making various assumplions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the
determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortalily rates, Duc to the complexitics invalved in the valuation
and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are
reviewed at cach reporting date.
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Altran Technologies India Private Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in INR Millions, unless otherwise stated)

Statement of compliance and basis of preparation (continned)
Use ol estimates and judgements (continued)

The parameter most subject Lo change is the discount 1ate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in
India, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencics consistent with the currencics of the post-
employment benelit obligation. The mortality rate is hased on publicly availablc mortality tables for the specitic countries. Those
mortality tables tend to change only at interval in response lo demographic changes. Fuwre salary increases and gratuily increases
are bused on expected future intlation ratcs.

(c) Revenue recognition

The Company uses the percentage-of-completion method in accounting for its fixed-price contracts. The use of the percentage off
completion method reguires the Company (o cstimate the costs expended to date as a proportion of the total costs to be expended.
Efforts or costs expended have been used to measure progress towards completion as there is a direct relationship between input
and productivity. Provisions for estimated losses., if any, on uncompleted contracts are vecorded in the period in which such losses
become prabable based on the expected contiact estimates at the reporting date.




Altran Technologics India Private Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Al amounts are in INR Millions, unless otherwise stated)

3 (a) Property, plant and equipment
Accounting policy

All items of property. plant and equipment are stated al historical cosl less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost
comprises of the purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable taxes. and other dircetly attributable cxpenses. Such
properlies are classificd to the appropriate categorics of property. plant and cquipment when completed and ready f(or intended use,
Subsequent costs related to an item of property, plant and equipment are added (o the asscl’s carrying amount or recognised as separate
assct, as appropriate, only when it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the assct. Any gains or losses arising on disposal or retirement of an items of property, plant and cquipment arc
recognised in the statement of Profit and loss. Asscts that will be recovered primarily through sale rather than through continuing use are
clussified as held for sale,

Depreciation is recognised on straight line basis, lo wrile ofl the cost of assets. over the cstimated useful lives of the asscts. The
estimated useful lives of the assets have been derived on the basis of technical evaluation performed by management's expert, and are
different than those specificd by Schedule [T to the Companies Act, 2013, in order (o reflect the actual wear and tear of the assets. The
estimated useful lives and the residual valucs arc reviewed al the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any change accounted
for prospectively as a change in accounting cstimate, Depreciation of the assets commences when the asscts arc ready for their intended
usc.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company’s non-financiul assets, other than deferred tax ussets. are reviewed at each reporting date 1o determine whether there is any
indication of impairment. 1f any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. Goodwill 1s tested annually for
impairment, For impairment Llesting, asscls that do not generate independent cash inflows are combined together into cash-generating
units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows that arc largely independent of the cash
inflows of other assets or CGUs. The identification of CGU involves Judgment, including assessment of where active market exists and
the level ol interdependency of the cashflows.

The recoverable amount of 2 CGU (or an individual assel) is the higher of'its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. Value in use
is bascd on the cstimated future cash flows, discounted 1o (heir present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the rigks specific (o the CGU (or the asset),

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU excecds its estimated recoverable amount. lmpairment
losscs arc recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Pursuant to a change in business strategy, the Company had revised its estimate of uselul lile [or property, plant and equipment wilh
effect from | April 2021. The revised useful lives are applicable for assets capitalised on or after 1 April 2021.

Uselul lifc

Assets capitalised on or before 31 Assets capitalised post 1
Gliogs pck March 2021 April 2021
Plant and equipment 10 ycars o
Oftice equipment 4-5 years 2-15 years
Furniture and Fixtures 10-20 years 5-7 years
Compuler systems 3-10 years 3-5 years
Vehicles 8-10 ycars 3-5 ycars

. . Lower of lease period or 6

Lcaschold Improvements Lower of leasc period

years
* Plant and cquipment have been reclassified to Office equipment category.




Altran Technologics India Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Al amounts arc in INR Millions, unless otherwise stated)

3(a) Property, plant and cquipment (continued)

Particulars | Leaschold QI'ﬁcc Computers | Furniture Vehicles Total
improvements | cquipment and fixtures
Deemed cost
Asat April 1], 2022 20.24 70.25 226,25 14,13 1.30 332,17
Additions during the year - 7.84 96.94 5.03 10981
[Haposals during the yeur 10.02) 473) 17.39) (8.78) 10.92) {21.80)
Rechuss during the year -
As at March 31, 2023 20.22 73.34 JI5.80 10.38 0.38 420.12
Asat April 01, 2023 20.22 73.0d 315.80 10.38 0.38 420.12
Aduitions duting the year - 4.26 66.99 1.71 = 72.90
Disposals during the year {5.32) (7.75) (25.18) (3.92) - 2T
Reclass during the vear -
As at March 31, 2024 14.90 69.85 357.61 8.17 0.38 450.91
Accumulated depreciation
As at April 01, 2022 192,03 56.74 173.62 Y.13 0.77 259.29
Depreciation charge during (he year 031 6.85 4090 218 003 50.29
Ihsposals during the year (0.01) {4.00) (7.39) {6.36) (0.4d) (18.20)
Reclass durmy the year - - 4.65 - - 4.05
Ag at Murch 31, 2023 19.33 59.59 211.78 4,95 0.38 296.03
As at April 01, 2023 19.33 59.59 201.78 4.95 .38 296.03
Depreciation charge dunng the yeur 10.26 4.63 63,04 2.00 - 70.01
Disposals durning the year (3.32) (7.73) (25.18) (2.65) - (40.88)
Reclass during the year - - - - - -
As al Murch 31, 2024 14.27 56.51 249.64 4.36 0.38 325.16
Netearrying value
As at Mareh 31, 2023 0.89 13.75 104.02 5.43 - 124.09
As at March 31, 2024 0.62 13.34 1117.97 3.81 - 125.75
3(b) Other Intangible assets
Customer Total other
Particulars Soltware Patent C i intangible
relationship .
assels
Deemed cost
As at April 01, 2022 84.49 .16 337.40 422.05
Additions during the year 045 - - 0.45
Disposals during the yeai - - - -
As at March 31, 2023 84.94 0,16 337.40 422.350
As at April 01, 2023 84.94 0.16 337.40 422.50
Additions durimg lhe yeur - - - -
Disposals during the year - - - =
As at March 31, 2024 84.94 0.16 337.40 422.50
Accumulated amortisatinn
As at April 01, 2022 81.18 0.6 A37.40 418.74
Amortization during the year 541 - - 541
Digpesals during the year kL o = =
Reclass during the year (4.65) - - (4.65)
As at March 31, 2023 81.94 .16 337.40 419.50
As at April 01, 2023 81.94 0.16 337.40 419.50
Amortisation during the vear 214 - . 2.14
Disposals during the vear - = H .
Reclass during the vear . - - -
As at March 31,2024 84.08 0.16 337.40 421.64
Net carrying value
As at March 31, 2023 3.00 - - 3.00
As at March 31, 2024 0.86 - - 0.86
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3(c) Goodwill
Accounting policy

Goodwill arising from a business combination is included in intangible asscts. Goodwill is not amortised but it is tested tor
impairment annually. or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that it might be impaired, and is carried
at cost less accumulated impairment losses

Impairment test for goodwill

Goodwill is monitored by management at the level of cash generating unit (CGUs)

Goodwill is tested for impairment on an annual basis and whenever there is an indication that goodwill may be impaired, relying
on a number of factors including operating results, business plans and future cash flows. For the purposc of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated to the Company’s cash generating units (CGU) or groups of CGU's
expected to benefit from the synergies arising fram the business combination. A CGU is the smallest identifiable group of
assets that generates cash inflows that arc largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or group of assets.
Impairment occurs when the carrying amount of a CGU including the goodwill, excceds the estimated recoverable amount of
the CGU. Value-in-use is the present value of future cash flows expected to be derived from the CGU.

Total impairment loss of a CGU s allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of goodwill allocated to the CGU and then to
the other assets of the CGU pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount of cach assel in the CGU. An impairment loss on
goodwill is recognised in the Statement of Protit and Loss and is not reversed in the subsequent period,

Following is the summary of changes in canrying amount of goodwill:

Particulars ke .
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Canrying value 1,803.1] 1,803.11

Total 1,803.11 1.803.11

The recoverable amount of the cash generaling units (CGUs) was determined based on value-in-use caleulations which require
the use of assumptions. The calculalions use cash Now projections based on financial projections approved by management
covering a live-year period. Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using the estimated growth rates stated
below. These growth rales arc estimated based on the industry in which CGU operates.

Impairment occurs when the carrying amount of a CGU including the goodwill, exceeds the estimated recoverable amount of
the CGU. The recoverable amount of a CGU is the higher of its fair value less cost to sell and its value-in-use. Value-in-usc is
the present valuc of future cash flows expected to be derived from the CGU. Value-in-use is determined based on discounted
futurc cash flows. The key assumptions uscd for the calculations are as follows :

As at As at
Particulars March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Sales (% annual growth ratc) 2.5% o 5% 9% to 15%
Long-term growth rate 4.2% 4.3%
Operaling margins on revenue 8% 11.9% 0 12.3%
Discount rate (Pre-tax) 13.84% 13.50%

The abave discount rate is based on the Weighted Average Cost of Capital (WACC) of the Company.

Decrease in sales volume to 3.5% and gross margin (o 6.45% will result in impairment of goodwill
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3 (d) Leases

Operating leases:
Accounting policy

The Company as a lessee

The Company's lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for land & buildings and vehiclcs, The Company assesscs
whetlier a contract contains a lease, at meeplion ol a contract. A contracl is, or contains. a lease if' the contract conveys the
right to control the usc of an identilicd assel for a peviod al'time in exchange fur consideration, To assess whether a contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified assct, the Company assesses whether : (i) the contract involves (he use of
an identitied asset (ii) the Company has substantially all of the cconomic benefits from use of the assel through the period of
the Jeasc and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use f the asset,

Al the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-oi-use (ROU) assel and a corresponding lease
liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessce, except for leases with a term of 12 months or less (short-term
leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low-value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an
operating expensc on a straight-line basis over (he term of (he lease, Certain lease arrangements includes the oplions to
extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it
is reasonably certain that they will be exercised. The ROU assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the injtial
amount of the leasc liability adjusted for any lease payments made it or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus
any initial direet costs less any lease incentives. They are subscquently measured at cost less aceumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. ROU assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the
lcase term and usetul life of the underlying asset. ROU asscts are evaluated for recoverability whenever cvents or changes in
circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts mayv not be recoverable. For the purposc of impairment testing, the
recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cosl to sell and the valie-in-usc) is determined on an individual
asset basis unless the asset does not generale cash (ows that are largely independent of those from other assels. In such
cases. the recoverable amount is determined lor the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the assct belongs

The lease liability is initially measurcd at amottized cost at the present value of the futurc lcase payments. The lease
payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental
borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these leases. Lease liabilities arce remeasured with a corresponding adjustment
(o the related ROU assct if the Company changes its assessment of whether it will excreise an cxtension or a termination
option. The discount rale is generally based on the incremental borrowing rate specific Lo the lease being evaluated or for a
portfolio of Teases with similar characteristics.

Ind AS 116 requires lessces to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of 4 lease adjusted with any option to
extend or terminate the lease, if the use of such opton is reasonably certain. The Company makes an assessment on the
expected lease tenm on a lease-by-lease basis and thereby assesses whether it is rcasonably certain that any options to extend
or terminate the contract will be cxercised. In evaluating the leasc term, the Company considers factors such as any
significant leasehold improvements undertaken over the lcase term, costs relating (o the termination of the lease and the
importance of the underlying asset to the Company's operations taking into account the location of the underlying asset and
the availability of suitable alternatives. The lease term in future periods is reassessed (o ensure that the lease term reflects
the current economic circumstances. After considering current and future economic conditions, the Company has concluded
that no material changes arc required to lcase period relating to the existing lcase contracts.

Leasce liability and ROU asscts have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been classified
as financing cash flows.
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3 (d) Leases (continued)

The changes in the carrying value of ROU; assets arc as follows :

Particulars Lm,'d .;m(l Furniture Leases Vehicle Total
Buildings

Balance as at April 1, 2022 04 45 34.99 12944
Additions 128 09 3.65 131.74
Changes duc lo increasce in lease period - - -
Deletions (34.43) (8.74) (43.17)
Depreciation® (60.59) (12.25) (72.84)
Balance as at Mareh 31, 2023 127.52 17.65 145.17
Balance as at April 1, 2023 127.32 17.65 - 145,17
Additions - 22,13 24.00
Changes due to increase in lease period - - - -
Decletions (78.41) - (2.01) (80.42)
Depreciation* (34.41) (7.23) (h11) (47.75)
Balance as at March 31, 2024 16.57 10.42 14.01 41.00

* The aggrepate depreciation cxpense on ROU assets is included under depreciation and amortiz

ation cxpensc in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

The break-up of currenl and non-current lease liabilitics are as follows -

) For the year ended For the vear ended
LGIL U March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Balance as at the beginning of the year 162.22 157.14
Additions 24.00 131.74
Finance cost accrued for the year (Refer Note 17) 9.35 16.01
Changes due to increase in lcase period - -
Deletions (86.53) (47.46)
Payment of lcase liabilities 136.73) {95.21)
Balance as at the end of the year 3231 162.22
Current feasc liability 27.57 38.27
Non-current lcase liability 24.74 123.95

The Company does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard Lo its lease liabilities as the current assets are sufficient
lo meel the obligations related to leasc liabilities as and when they fall due.

Rental expense recorded for short-term leases was Rs. 107.19 million and Rs. 55.49 million for the year ended March 31,
2024 and March 31,2023 respectively.

o ) . For the year ended For the year ended
Amount recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss March 31, 2024 Mareh 31. 2023
Particulars

Gain on lcasc lermination / modifications 6.08 4.25
Amortisation of right-of-usc assets 4775 72.84
Interest on leasc liabilities 935 16.01
Expenses relating Lo short-term lease 107.19 5549

Amounts recognised in the Statement ol Cash Flows

Particulars
Interest on lcasc obligations (9.35) (16.01)
Payment of lease liabititics (47.38) (79.20)

Expenses relating to short-term and low valuc Icases (107.19) (55.49)
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4

Financial asscts
Accounting policy
(i) Recognition and initial measurement

All financial assets other than trade receivables are iitially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. A linancial asset is initially measured al its fair value plus. in the case of a financril asset not at fair value through profit or loss (
FVTPL). transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial assel. Trade receivables are initially measured at
transaction price as they do not contain any significant financing components or pricing adjustments embedded in the contract. The Company holds
the trade receivables with the objective of collecting the contractual cash flows and therefore measures them subsequemly at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less loss allowance.

(if)  Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial asset is classified as ‘equity instrument’ if' it is a non-derivative and meets the definition of ‘equity” for the issuer. Al other non-derivative
financial asscts are *debt instruments®, On initial recognition, a financiak assct is classiticd as below:

(a) Financial asset measured at amortised cost:

A debt instrument is subscquently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method less any impairment, il the assct is held within a
busmess model whose dbjective is o hold assets W colleet contractual cash flows; and (he contractusl terms of the finuncial asset give 1ise on
sputificd dates to cash flows. that are salely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. fnterest income is recognised on
an effective yield basis in other income: Financial assets mensured at amortised cost include non-cirrent investments other Usan investinent in
subsidiaries. trade receivables, cash and cash equivilents, by
financial asscts.

1k bulances other than cash and cash equivalents and other current and non-current

(b) Finuncial asset carried at fair value through other comprehensive income:
Financial asset subsequently measured at FVOCI comprise of:

i Equity sccurities (listed and unlisted) which are not held Tor trading. and lur which the Company has irrevocably clected al initial recognition 1o
recognise changes in fair value through QCT tather than profit or loss. These ure stiategic investments, and the Company considers this classification
to be more relevant, There are currently no equity instruments which are carried at FVOCT.

ii. Debt sccurities where the contractual cash tlows arc solely principal and interest and the ohjective of the Company’s business model is achieved
both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets. Thete are cun ently no debt secutities which are carried at FVOCT

(c) Financial assct carried at fair value through profit or loss:
A [tnancial asset, which does not qualify for measurement at cither amortised cost or FVOCI. is subsequently measured at fair value and any gain -
loss is recognised in profitor loss. It includes current investments.

(iti)  Derccognition
The Compuny derccagnises a financial asset when the contractual nghts 1o the cash flows from the financial asset expire. or it tansfers the rights to

reccive the contractual cash Mows in a transaction in which substantially all ol the risks
transterted or in which the Company neither transfeors nor retains substantially all of the ri

and rewards ol ownership of the financial asset are
s and rewards of ownership and does not retain control

of the financial asset
(iv)  Tmpairment of Minanciul ussets

The Company recognises loss allowances lor expected credit losses on:
- financial assels measured at amortised cost: and
- financial assets measured sl FVOCI- debt investments,

The Company assesses al cach date of bulance sheet whether u financial asset is credit impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit impaired” when one o
more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash fAows of the (inancial asset have occurred. Ind AS 109 requires expected
credit losses 1o be measured through a loss allowance,

The management Tollows provisioning palicy based on the ageing ol owstanding receivables. Basis review of receivables composilion management
has concluded that impact of expected credit loss is not material and current provision made against such trade receivable is adequate to cover the
provision on account of expecled credit loss,
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4 (a)

()

Financial asscts (continued)
(iv)  Tmpairment of financial assets (continued)

For all other financial asscts, expected credit losses arc measured at an amount cqual to the 12-months expected credit losses or at «n wmount cqual
ta the lifetime expected credil losses if the credit risk on the financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and when eslimating expecled
ciedit losses, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or cffort, This
includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company's historical experience and informed credit assessment
and including forward looking information,

The amount of expeeted credit losses (o reversal) that is required to adjust the Toss allowance at the reporting date is recognized as an impairment
loss or gain in Statement of Prolit and Loss. Individual financial assels ate written off when management deems them not @ he colleetible,

Offsctting financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilitics arc offsct. and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and only when, the Company curvently
has a legully enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends cither Lo scttle them on a net basis or to realise the assel and setlle the liability

simultuncousty,

Non-current investments

As at As at
March 31, 2024 Murch 31, 2023

Particulars

Investment in equity instruments (Unquoted)
Wholly owned subsidicrics

Altran Engincering Solutions (Europe) Ll - -
(Crstwhile Pricol Technologies (Furope) Limited)
266,652 (March 31, 2023: 266,652) equity shares of GBP | cach

Altran Engineering Solutions Japan Corporation .69 1.69
(Exstwhile Pricol Technologics Japan Corparation)
25,270 (March 31, 2023: 25,270} equily shares of JPY 100 cach

Altran Engineering Solutions Inc, 0.02 0.02
(Frstwhile Pricol Technologies Tnc.)
500 (March 31, 2023: 500) cquity shares of USD | cach

Global Edge Software Limited 6.212.05 6.212.05
24 470,651 (March 31, 2023 : 24,470.651 ) equity shares of Rs | each

945,850 (March 31, 2023 : 945,850 ) Class A equity shures of Rs. | euch

406,750 (March 31,2023 : 406.750 ) Class B cquity shares of Rs. | cach

Total $,213.76 6,213.76
Aggregate amount of unguoted investments 6.986.27 6.986.27
Apgregate amount of impairment in the value of investments (772.51) (772.51)

The Compuny accounts for investments in subsidiaries at cost (less accumulated impairment, iCany). The management reviews the catrying value of
these investments in subsidiaries at each reporting date and assesses if there are any indicators of impairment and performs an impairment analysis
by making an estimate of recoverable amount, being the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use The Management has estimated the
recoverable value based on the value in use approach determined using discounted forecast cash flow model

Equity investment in subsidiaries are cartied at historical cost as per the accounting policy choice given by Ind AS 27.




Altran Technologies India Private Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2024
(All amounts arc in INR Millions, unless otherwise stated)

4.(b)

4(c)

Financial assets (continued)

Current investiments
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Measured at fair value through profit or loss
Investment in mutual fund units
47,622,473 (March 31, 2023: 47,622.473) units of Tita money market fund diceet plan growth 207.87 192.78
S0,7458.199 (Marel 31, 2023: 50,748.199) units of Kotak money market Tind - diveet Plan - growth 209.21 194.28
2.86,268.514 (March 31, 2023: 2.86,268.514) units of ICIC] Maoney Markel Fund - Direet Growth 99.97 92.84
1.06,567.51 (Muarch 31. 2023 1 06,567.51) units of Axis Muoney Market Fund Direat Geowih 139.81 129.76
1.68.330.367 (March 31. 2023; 1.68.350.367) units of Aditya Birla Sun Life Money Manager Fund - 57.37 53.23
Growth - Dirget Plan
39,821.47 (March 31, 2023: 61.632.697) Units Of Nippon India Liquid Fund - Dircet Plan Growth
Plan 235.30 218.64
19.353.513 (March 31, 2023: 19,353.513) unilts of Invesco India Moncy Markel Fund - Direct Plan
Growth 55.54 51,66
12,446.524 (March 31, 2023; 28,098 879) units of Adilya Birla Sun Life Overnight Fund - Growth- 16.12 34.07
Direct Plan
3.84.547.96 (March 31, 2023: 1,48.174.13) units of Tata Liquid Fund Direct Plan - Growth 1.465.22 526.23
9.074.954 (March 31, 2023: 9.074.954) units of HDFC Liquid Fund -Dircet Plan - Growth Optian 43.05 40.14
Total 2.520.46 1,533.63
Aggregate amount of quoted investments 2,529.46 1,531.63
Agpregate market value of quoted investments 252946 1,533.63
Trade receivables
Particulars As at As at

Mareh 31,2024

Mareh 31, 2023

Trade receivables (Unsceured, considered good)
Trade receivables - related parties hilled*

447.68 459.64

Trade receivables - billed - others 489.01 652,80
Trade receivables - related partics unbilted* 238.59 1.44
1.170.28 1,113.88
Less: luss allowance (12.86) {21.37)
Total 1.157.42 1.092.51

* Refer note 28 Tor balances (om refated parties

Credit risk is influenced by the individual characteristics of the customers. Before accepling any new customer, the Company analyses the credit
worthiness of the potential customer and defines eredit limit by customer, The average credit period is between 30 to 60 days

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment (Undisputed)
Unbilled

238.59 .44
Not due 869.82 1.065.72
Less than 6 months 44.76 2512
6 months - | year 8.40 8.92
1-2 ycars 5.36 9.59
2-3 ycars 2.01 3.09
More than 3 years 1.34 -
Sub Total 1.170.28 1,113.88
Less: Loss allowance (12.86) (21.37)
Total 1.157.42 1.092.51
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4(d)

4(c)

4N

4(g)

Financial assets (continned)
Cash and cash equivalents

Accounting policy

The Company cousiders all highly liquid financial instruments, which are readily converiible into known amounts of cash that arc subjcet to an
msignificant risk of chinge in valie and having origmal maturitics of three months or less (rom the date of purchase, to be cash cquivalents. Cash

and cish equivalents cansist of balunces with banks which ave unrestricted for withdrawal and usage

Particulars

As at
Mareh 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

Balances with banks:

=11 current accounts 23.79 6.40
- in EEFC accounts 13.87 71.76
- in deposit accounts* 203.27 143.48
Tatal 240.93 221.64

* The deposits maintained by the Company with hanks and financial institutions comptise ot time deposits inchuding deposits with muturitics more

which can be withdrawn by the Company al any point without prior notice or penalty on the principal.

Bank balances other than (note 4 (d)) above

Particulars

As at

Mareh 31,2024

As at
March 31,2023

In carmarked account;

- Escrow account 10.00 10.00
Total 10.00 10.00

Other non current financial assets
As at As at

Particulars

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

(Unsecured. considercd good)

Security deposits 13.38 22.39
Deposits held as security for bank guarantces 0.38 0.36
Deposits with original maturity of more than 12 months - 1.31
Total 13.76 24.06

Others current financial assets
As at As at

Particulars

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

(Unsccured, considered good)

Sceurity deposils

Interest accrued on deposits with banks
Total

9.55 19.78
0.83 0.02
10.38 19.80
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N

Income tax assets and liabilities (net)

Non-current

Particulars

As at As at

March 31, 2024 NMarch 31, 2023

(a) Income tax asscts (nct) non-current 611,18 1.051.21
(b) Income tax liabilitics (net) current 124.48 107.49
Total (a)-(h) 486.70 943.72

For the year ended

Income tax asscts (net) NMareh 31, 2024
Nareh 31,

For the year ended
NMareh 31, 2023

Opening Income tax asset (net)

943.72 772.37
Income tax expensc during the year (134.41) (160.17)
Ulilization of MAT Credit - 20.38
Income tax paid during the year (net of refund received of 518 million during yeur ended March 31, 5
2024 (March 31, 2023-Nil) (322.61) 311.64
Total 486,70 943.72
Other non-current assets
Particulars 0 s

March 31, 2024

Maureh 31, 2023

{Unsecured. considered good)

Balances Receivable [rom Government Authorities 116 1.16
Prepaid Expenses 0.07 0.19
Total 1.23 .35
Other current assets
— As al As at
Particulars March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Advance to employees 0.71 15.22
Balances with government authoritics 105.73 46,78
Prepaid Expenses 66.00 113.60
Unbilled revenuce * 23541 400 87
Advances to supplicis ** 2,16 32.67
Total 410.01 669.14

Classified as non financial asscl as the comractual right to consideration 15 conditional and dependent on the completion of all contractual terms

** Advance to suppliers include balances from related parties amounting to Nil (31 March 2023: 15.15 million)
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1

8 (n)

8 (b

R (c)

8 (d)y

8 (e)

R (B

Equity share capital

As at Asat

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Authoerised:
96.000.000 equity shares vl Rs. 10 cach 960 .00 960.00
(Murch 31,2023 : 96,000,000 equity shares o Rs 10 each)

Total 960.00 961100

Issued, subscribed and paid up capital:

21,707,801 equity shares of par value of Rs. 10 each 917 0% 917.08
(March 31.2023: 91,707,801 cquity sharcs of Rs. 10 cach)
Total 917.08 917.08

Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and end of the yeur

Particulars ol ROEE
Mareh 31, 2024 March 31. 2023
Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount

No. of equity shares outstanding at 017 08
the beginning af the year 9.07,07.801 ) 9.17.07 801 91708
Outstanding as at the end of the venr 9.17.07.801 Y1708 U.17.07.801 917.08

The Company has only onc class of sharcs with voting rights having par value of Rs [0 cach. Each holder of cquity shares is cligible lor onc
vote per share held, Dividend proposed by the Board ot Directors, il any is subject to the approval o' the sharcholders at the Annuval General
Mecting. except in case of interim dividend which is approved hy the Board of Dircctors

Details of shares held by the holding company and their subsidiaries

. Ay at As at
Particulars Murch 31,2024 Marceh 31, 2023
Altran (Singapore) Pic Limited - $,29,00,000
Capgemini SE - RR,07.801
Capgemini Technology Services India Ltd 2,17.07.801 -
HAITNT.R0L D 0T7.07.80)

On 7th Junc 2023, Capgemini Technology Services India Limited signed share purchase Agreement with Aluan iSingapore) Pte Lid and
Capgemini SE and acquived 100% shares of the compiny.

Details of shares held by cach shareholder holding more than 5% shares in (he company

Particulars As at -
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Number of shares % Number ol shures %
Altran (Singapore) Pre Limited - 0% 82900000 G0
Capuemini SE - 0% 8R.07.801 0"
Capgemini Technology Seivices India Lid 91707801 100% - 0%
Detuils of shares held by promotors
Particulars GO B
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023

Number ol » ol shares h (,)' change Number of shares % of shares * of change

shures during the vear duving the venr
Aliran (Singapore) Pre - 0% -90°%. £,28.99.999 D "
Capgemini SE - 0% 10", {R.07.801 10% o,
Capgemini
Technoloev Services  9,172,07,801 100% L0

Capgemini SE. the altimate holding company holds 100% shares through Capgemini Technology Setvices India 1id

Aggregare number of bonus shares issued, shares issued for consideration other than cash and shares bought hack during the period
ol five years immediately preceding the reporting date:

There were no bonus shares issued, shares issued for consideration other than casl] and shares bought back during che periad al live years

immediatcly preceding the reporting date.
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v

91

93

94

v.5

b)

(9]

d)

Other cquity

Particulars ] ALy
Murch 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Seaniities premium 9.945 44 0.945 44
General reserve 153.10 153,10
Share based payment rescive 37.52 20.94
Retained Earnings 53%.98 103.66
Total 11,675.04 10,223.14
As at As al

Details of movement

Scecurities premium
Ralance at the beginning of the year
Balanee at the end of the year

General reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year
Balance at the end of the vear

Retained earnings

Balance at the beginning af the yeat
Profit/ (loss) for the year

Other comprehensive mcome ! (loss)
Balance at the end of the year

Cash flow hedging reserve
Rulance at the beginning of the year
Other comprehensive (loss) 2 income
Balunce at the end of the vear

Share based payment reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year
Charge for the yem

Balance at the end of the vear

Securitics premium

Represcents amount received (on issuc of shares) in excess of the pat value

General reserve

General reserve represents the free reserve which is used from time to

purposcs.

Retained earnings

Comprises of prior years” undistributed carnings aller taxes

Share based payment veserve

The employee stock option 1esenve represents the cumulative pottion of the
share ownership plan and performance share plan)

Marceh 31, 2024

9,945 44
9,945.44

2094
1658
37.52

of the shares

March 31,2023

9,945 .44
9.945.44

(

1s3.10
153.10

)

{220.71)
31 64

12.73
103.66

l

(0.18)
0.18

H

4.33
16.61
20.94

time to tunster profits from retained carnings for appropriation

cast determined as per fair value of shares (us per the cmployee
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I Financial liabilitics
Accounting policy
W)y Classification as debt or cqiity

Financial liabilities and cquity instruments issucd by the Company
substance of the contractual artangements and the definitions of a financial hability and an equity instrument,

(i} Equity instruments

are classified as cither financial Kabilitics or as cquily in accordance with the

An cquity instrument is any contiact tha evidences a vesidual interest in the assets of the Company alier deducting all ol its liabilitics Equily

Instruments are recognised at the proceeds received, nel of direet issue costs,

(ii1)  Financial linbdities

A fivaneid Nabilitics are absequently measured at amortised cost using the effeetive interest rate method or al fur v

alue through profit and loss.

Frade and other payables represent habilitics for gouds or services provided to the Company prior to the ead of financial year which pre wopaid, For
trade and other payable maturig within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying value approximates fair value due to shont Iy,

{iv) De-recognition of financial Kabilitios

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company's obligations are tiseharged. cancelled or have expired. The

Company also derecogni

s 4 fimancial lability when its terms are modified and ihe cash Mows inder the muidified terms pre substuntinlly different.

In this case, a new financial liabiliry based on the modified ferms is recognied af e value, The difference between the carying amount of the

linancial liability extinguished and the new linancial liability with madificd terms isrecog

sedd in the Stenen of Prodit ani Loss,

1 (a) Leasc liabilities
Asar Asat
Particulurs Mareh 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Non Current Lease habilities (Refer nate 3 ()} 2474 12395
Current Leasc liabilities (Refer note 3 (d)) 27,57 3827
Total 52.31 162,22
10 (b) _Trade payables
. As at Asal
Eltalags March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Dues to micro and small enteiprises (Reler note 26) 7.30 0.36
Due to other than micra and small enterptises
Ducs to others 175.70 261.52
Dues o related patics (Refer note 28) 278.05 314.29
Total 461.05 576.17
Ageing of Trade payables
(i) Undisputed dues- MSME 7.30 0.36
(1i) Undisputed ducs- Others 453 75 575.RI
As As at
Muarch 31, 2024 Muarch 31, 2023
Ouistanding for following periods from due date of paytnent MSME Chhers MEME Oihers
Acctuals 20076 2K6.02
Nol due 4.45 224 14 278,44
Less than | Yew 2.83 26.40 027 11.34
1-2 years - 240 0.09 0.01
2-3 years 0.0l 0.05 .
Mote than 3 years 0.01 - -
Tolal 7.30 453.75 0.36 575.81
10 (¢) Other current financiol liabilitivs
N As al Asat
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Capex creditirs 21.59 412
Other payables 63.90 5310
Interest acerued under MSMED Act, 2006 313 244
Employee dues 70.69 6545
Total 159,31 125.11
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1 (a)

11 (b}

Provisions
Accounting policy

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present fegal or constructive ubhgation as a result of pust events, it is probable that the Company

will be required to scule the obligwion and a reliable estimate can be made of the amouni of obligation.

The amount recognised us a provision is the best esimate of the consideration tequired to settle the present abligation at the end of the reporting
period, taking mto account the risks and uncertainties surt vunding the obligation,

Provisions are reviewed at the end of euch reporting period and adjusted to rellect the current best estimate. 1 itis no longer probable that an outflow
nf resourees would be required 1o seitle the obligation. the provision is reversed.

Oncerous Conltracts

A vontract is considered as onerous when Lhe expected ceonomic benefits to be derived by the Company trom the contract are lower than the
univeidihile cost of meeting its ubligations under the contract, The [rovision for an oncrous contract is measured at the tower of the
terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract. Before
impinrment loss on the assets assacialed with that cantract,

expected cost ol
a provision is cstablished, the Conpany rECnENISes any

Non current Provisions

. As at As at
L March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Gratity (Reler note 29) 132,18 129.70
Tutal 132.18 129.70
Current Provisinns

, As at Asat
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Compensated absences (Itefer nole 29) 172 98 178,36

Tatal 172.98 178.36

Deferred tax Habilities (net)
Nan-current

Particulars As at As at

Mareh 31, 2024 Mareh A1, 2023
Deferred lax labilines 483 83 A66 48
Deferied tax asscts (120.80) (121.18)
Tutal (Refer Note 194d}) 36303 35,30

The movement in net defetred tax liability has been recarded thiough the Si
of defined benetic plans, antounting to INR (2.38) million (31 March 202
amounting to Nil (31 March 2023 (0.10) million) crcated through OC!I

atement of Proficand Loss, except deferied ax related 1o remeasurement
JUINR (21 milliony and defereed tax retaed 10 cash flow hedge reserve,

Other current linhilitics

N As at Asal
Particulars March 31, 2024 Narch 31,2023
Stalutery ramiitances * 78.37 314
Advance received from customers 1ol 382
Uncamed revenue 2161 48.94
Totul 111.39 147.90

There are no amounts due and outstanding (o be credited to Investor Education and Protection Fund

*Statutory ducs payable compriscs of -

Tax Deducted at Source payable 5736 68 9%
Provident Fund pavable 21.27 2592
Prolession Tax payable 0.13 0.24
Emplovees State lnsurance payable 0.01 001

Total 877 [ENE]
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14

stated)

Revenue
Accounting policy

The Company detives revenue primarily from cugineering consultancy and related services. Revenue is recognised upon ransfer ot control of promised

products or services Lo customers at the contracted price which the Company seceives in exchange for those products or services.

At contiact inception, the Company assesses its promise to transfer products or services ta a customer to ientify separate performance obligations. The
Company applies judgement to determine whether cach product or services promised to a customer are capable of being distinet, and are distinel in the
context of the contract, if not, the promised product or services are combined and accounted as a single performance obligation. The Company allecates Lhe
arrangement consideration lo separately identifiable performance obligation based on their 1elative stand-alone selling price or residual method. Stand-alone
selling prices are determined based on sale prices for the components when it is regularly sold scparalely. in cases where the Company is unahle 1o
determine the stand-alone selling price the Company uses expected cost plus margin approach in estimating the stand-alone selling price,

For performance obligations where contral is transferred over time, revenues are recognized by measuring progress Llawards completion of the performance

obligation. The sclection ol the method to measure progress towards completion requires judgement and is based on the nature of the promiscd products o1
services 1o be provided

The method for 1ccognizing revenues and costs depends on the nature of the services rendered:-

a) Time and materials contracts
Revenues and costs relating to time and materials contiacts are recognized as the related services are rendered. Revenuce from these contracts are nicasured

based on the time spent on the contract and at the conhucted rate. Revenue from the end of the Jast bitling 10 the balance sheet date is recognized as
unbilled revenues.

b) Fixed price contracts

Revenues from tixed-price contracts, where the performance obligations arce satistfied overtime and where there is 1o uncertainty as to measurement or
collectability of consideration, are recognized using the “percentage-of completion” method. Percentage of completion s determined based on project cosls
incurted to date as a percentage of total cstimated project costs tequired Lo complete the project. The cost expended (or input) method has been used to
measure progress towards completion as there is a dicect relationship between input and productivity, If the Company does not have a sufficient basis to
measure the progress of completion or to estimale the total contract revenues and costs, revenue is recognized only to the extent of contract cost incurred for
which recoverability is probable. When total cost estimates exceed revenues in an arrangement, the estimaled losscs are recognized in the Statement of
Prolitand Loss in the period in which such losses become probable based on the current contract estimates, *Unbilled revemies’ represent cosl and carnings
in cxcess of billings as at the end of the reporting period *Uncamed revenues' represeat billing in excess of revenuc rceognized, Advance payments
received from customers lor which no services have been rendered are presented as “Advance from customers.”

¢) Maintenunce contracts
With respeet to fixed-prive maintenance contracts, where services arc performed thyough an indefinite number of repetitive acts over a specificd period,
revenue is recognized on a straight-line basis over the specitied period unless some other method betler represents the stage of completion,

d) Others

Any change in scope or price is considered as a contract modification. The Company accounts for modilications to existing contracts by assessing whether
the services added are distinct and whether the pricing is at the siandalone selling price.

Services added that are not distinet are accounted for on a cumulative catch up basis, while those that arc distinct are accounted for prospectively, either as
a separate contiact il the additionul services are priced at the standalone selling price, or as a termination of the existing contract and creation of a new
contiact if nol priced at the standalone sclling price. The Company accounts for variable considerations like, volume discounts, rebates and pricing
incentives to customers as reduction of revenuc on a systematic and rational basis over the period of the contract. The Company estimales an amount of
such variable consideration using expected value method or the single most likely amount in a range of possible considerations depending on which method
better predicls the amount of consideration to which we may be entitled. Revenues are shown net of allowances/ returns, vahue added 1ax, goods and
scivices tax and applicable discounts and allowances

Revenue [rom services rendered to parent company. ultimate parent company and fellow subsidiaries is recognised on cost plus markup basis determined
on anm's length principle as and when the related scrvices are rendered.

Reimbursements received from customers are recognised as revenue.
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14 Revenue (vonlinued)

Revenue from operations

Particulass For the yvear ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 Mareh 31. 2023

Sule of services™ o 571232 6,543.70

Total 571202 6,543.76

* Sule ol services includes Ry, 133.26 mullion (31 March 2023- Rs, 44,70 millton) towards out of pocket expenses retmbuesed by the customers,

i) Disaggregation of revenue

The above break-up presents disaggiegated revenues fiom contiacts with customers by each ol the business wents. The Company befieves that ths
disaggregation best depicts how the nature, amount, timing and uncettainty of ow revenues and cash lows are affecied by industry. market and other
economic factors. The Sale of services by peographic tegion are given below

For the year ended For the vear ended
Gengruphie reglun Murch 31, 2024 , 2023
Tnekia 331687 19,52
America £44d.28 847.37
Furope 1.531 21 1,435 50
Hist ol the worly 19.96 51.37
Tutal 571132 h.543.76

i) Truade Recefvahles and Contract Balances

The Company classilics the right 10 consideration in exchange for deliverables as either o 1eceivable o as unbilled revenue. Invoicing in excess ol cannngs
arc classilicd as uncarned revenue, Trade reccivables and wnbilled 1evenes are presented nel of impairment in the Balance Sheet

The follswing tble provides nformation abuiit reecivables, contract assets and contract labilities. fiom contracts with costomers

Particulars AUl sint
) Miirely 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Receivables, which are ieluded i Trule reccivables’ 1.157.42 1.092.51
Contract assels (Unbilled Revenues) 235410 46087
Contract fiabilities (Advances Received from Customeis) 11 3.82
Contraet liabilities (Uneamed 1evenue) 2Ll 48.94

Thure are no reconeiling items between contract price and the revenue recognised

The contiact assets primagdy relate 1o the company’s rights to consideration for work completed bul not billed at the reporting date, The conteact assels are
transterred to receivables when the rights become unconditional. The contract liabilities primarily relate 1o the advance consideration received from
customer. for which revenue is recogmsed on completion of conteact terms,

The following table discloses the movement in unbilled revenue (contract assets), uncamed revenuc (contractual liabilities) balances for the year ended 31
March 2024 and 31 March 2023;

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
DITEACT Hasel TANIIIES onivact ansel Coniract ahimae,
Unbilied revenue Unearned revenve Unbilied revenue Unearned revenue
Opening balance 460.87 (48.94) 56367 (8.50)
Revenue recognised during the year 235.41 21.61 460.87 48.94
Invuices ruised during the year (460.87) 4R.94 (563.67) R.50
Ralances as at the end of the year 23541 {21.61) 4060 87 {48.94)

The Pllowing table discloses the movement ik advances reecived from cusiomers balances for the vear ended 3 March 2024 and 31 Muarch 2023:

Particulars For the year cnded For the year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Barlanew os at the beginning of the year 382 4.7
Add " Received during the year 723 382
Less : Invoiced during the year {0.04) 14.70)

Buluiice as at the end of the yeuar 101 .82
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(4 Revenue (ontinued)
iii) Performance obligations and remaining performance obliputions

The rersaining performance obligation diselosure providis the amount of tie transaclion price yet to be recognized as al the cud of the reporting period and
an cxplanation as 0 when the Company expects 1o recognize hese amounts in revenue. Applying the practical expedient as given in Ind AS 115, the
Company has not disclosal the value ol remaining performuance obligations for

(1) comtracts with an onpinil expectedd duration of one vear o less and

(1) contracts for which the Company recognises revenue at the amount to which 1t has the night ta mvoiee for services performed {Lypicatly those controcis

where nvoicing is on time and material bagis)

15 Other income
Accounting policy
Interest income is recognized as it acciues in the statement of profitand luss, usmg the efTective interest method,
Parti < o For the year ended For the year ended
i March 31,2024 Mareh 31, 2023
Interest income under the effective interest rate method on:
Deposils with banks 192 274
Interest income on income tax refunds 112 -
Interest income fiom financal assels at amortised cost 0.2] 4.13
Net forcign exchange gain (Loss) - 7.7
Liabihties no longer required. wrilten back 4358 011
Reversal of Loss allowance 851 3.04
Gain on disposal of right uf use assct 6.08 4.25
Gain on sale of lixed assets .33
Gain on sale of mutual funds 90.84 2537
Gain on fair value measurement of mutual funds 6895 40,80
Miscellaneous income A8 27 276
Total ERXEIN 91.37
t6 _Emplovee benelit expense
. For the year ended For the year ended
ST March 31, 2024 Mareh 31,2023
Salanies, bonus and allowances 2.680.54 300 R2
Contribution to provident and other funds (Refer note 29) 128.30 145,22
Conmpensated absences 36.61 85.52
Employee stock compensation expense (Refer note 32) 16.58 16.61
Stail welfare expenses 3791
Gratuily (Refer note 29) 40,80
Tatal 1,940.74
[7 _Finance costs

Particulars

For the year ended
h 312024

Far the vear ended
March 3, 2023

Interest expense

- on lcase hubility (Refer note 3 (d)) 9,35 16.01
- on MSME (Refer nate 26) 0,70 237
- Interest expense on income lax 1233 1.59
Total 22.38 19.87
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Qther expenses

Particulars

For the year endled
March 31, 2024

For the year ended
March 31,2023

Sub contracting expenscs 1.939.48 202248
Legal and Professional fecs 34.72 43.15
Auditors' remuneration (Refer note below) 9.21 9.23
Repairs and maintenance- Others 68.62 67.15
Management (ees 5318 146.26
Travelling and conveyance 40.57 45.61
Communication 10.61 14.84
Allowance for loss on trade receivables 12.03 0.0}
Power and (uel 12.40 18.31
Rates and taxes 9.19 6.87
Sccurity charges 361 5.20
Rent (Refer note 3 (d)) 107.19 55.49
CSR Expenses (Refer note 31) 7.1 401
Loss on salc of fixcd asscts. net - 2,06
Net foreign exchange loss 9.21 -
Miscellaneous expenses 5.77 9.60
Total 2,322.90 2,450.27
Note:

Auditor's remuneration (excluding indirect taxes) *

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

As auditor:
- lor statutory audit

5.60 S.R2
- for tax audit 0.93 0.93
- tor group reporting 2,15 2,13
- for certifications 0.53 0.33
9.21 9.23

* Reimbursement of expense will be billed at actuals
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19 (a)

1Y (b)

Income tax

Accounting policy

The income tax cxpense or credit for the period represents the tax currently payable and deferred tax.
I'l) CIU'P'L’I” ine ome lax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax, 1t is recognised in the Statement of Profit and 1 .oss except lo the extent that it relates to a
business combination ar to an item recognised dircetly in cquily or in other comprehensive income

Current tax compiises the expected tax payable or reecivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment (o the tax
payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current 1ax telicets the best estimate of the tax amount expectled 1o be
paid or received alter considering the uncerlainty. if any. related (o income taxes. 1t is meusured using Lax rates (and lax laws) enacted ot
substantively enacted by the reporting date in each of the applicable jurisdictions. Management periodically evalnates pusitions taken in
tax returns with respect Lo situations in which applivable tax regalation is subject to interpretation and considers whether it is prabable that
a taxation awthority will accept an uncertain lax treatment, The Company measures 1ts Lax balances either based on the most likely amount
or the expected value, depending on which method pravides a better prediction of the resolution of the uncertainty. Curent tax assets and
curtent tax liabilities are ofiset anly il there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts. and it is intended to realise the
asset and settle the liability on a net busis or simultancously

h) Defirred income tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary dilferences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purpases and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purpuses, Delerred tax is also recognised in respect ol carsied forward tax
losses and tax credits. Deferred tax is not recognised for:-

- lemporary differences arising on the initial recognition ol assets or habilities in a transaction that is not 2 business combination and that

affects neither accaunting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction:

- temporary differences related o investments in subsidiaries (o the extent that the Campany is able to contral the timing of the reversal ol
the temporary differences and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foresecable future; and

- laxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill

Deferred fax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is vealised o the liability is setiled, based
on the faws that have been enacted or substantively cnacled by the reporting date. The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the canying
amount of its assets and labilities. Deferred tax ags

21y and liabilities are oftset it there is a legally enforceable vight to offset current tax
liabililies and asseis. and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax author ity on the same taxable entity. or on ditlerent tax entities,
but they intend to settle current tas liabilities and asscts on o net busis or their tax assets and labilitics will be realised simultancously.

Income tax expense recopnised in the statement of prolil and loss consists af:

For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Partienlars

Current tax

In respect of the current yeat 101 .01 94.68
Inrespect of prior yeius 3340 66.49
134.41 161.17

Deferred tax
Relating o vtigination and reversal of temporary differences 1515 109.65
15.15 109.65
Inconie tax expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss 149.56 270.82

Tnconte tax expense recognised in other comprehensive incomes:

For the year ended  For the year ended

bl March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Deferred tax

Arising on income and expenses recognised in other comprehensive income:

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit plan (2.5%) (2.81)
Remeasurement gain on elfective portion of cash ow hedges - (0.10)

Income tax expense recognised in other comprehensive income (2.91)
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19 TIncome tax (continued)

19 (¢) Reconciliation of effective (ax rate

For the year cnded  For the year ended
Mareh 31,2024 Murch 31, 2023

Particulars

P'roht belure tax

571.21 58246
Enacted income tax rate in India 25 1709% 25 170%
Computed expecied tax expense 145,28 146,61
Effect of:
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 179 5.28
Rate change impact - 28.38
Tax related to prior years 3340 66.49
Tax effect due to non-taxable income and deductions for tax purposes (37.06) -
Others 6.15 2401
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 149.56 270.82

Pursuant to the Taxation Law (Amendment) Qrdinance, 2019 ('the Ordinance') issued on 20 Seplember 2019 and which is cffective | April
2019, demestic companies have an option ta pay corporate lax ratc at 22% plus applicable surcharge and cess (new lax tate) subjcct Lo
certain condilions. The Company has madc an assessment of the impact of the Ordinance and decided to consider the new tax rates

effective | April 2022 onwards

19 (d) Deferred tax liabilitics (nct)

Deferred tax ussets/ (ltubilitics) as at 31 March 2024 in relation to:

Recognised in

R Opening  Recognised in - Utilisation of other .
Particulars i ) ; ) Closing balance
balance  profit or loss tax credits comprehensive
Incume
il Cgjiapment & 34.02 (3.86) _ N 3016
intangibles
Goodwill (453 84) - - - (453.84)
Provision for gratuity 3265 321 - (2.5%) 3328
Provision for leave cncashment 44 8y (1.36) - - 43.53
Provision for doubtiul debts and advances 5.38 (2.14) - - 3.24
Bunus - 7.80 - . 7.80
Right of usc assct (net) 424 (1.45) - - 2719
Gain on fair value measurement of mutuat (12.64) (17.35) E - (29.99)
funds
Total (Refer note 12) [345.30) (15.15) - (2.58) (363.03)

Deterred tax assets/ (Habilities) as at 31 March 2023 in relation to:

Recognised in

. Opening  Recognised in - Utilisation ol nther .

Particulars - - \ i Closing balance

balance  profit or loss tax credits comprehensive

income

Property, plant ad equipment & 43.66 (9.64) R < 34.02
intangibles
Goodwill (453.84) - - - (453.84)
Pravision for gratuity 31.49 0.5l . 0.65 3265
Provision for lcave encashment 47.90 0.45 . (3.46) 44 89
Provision lor doubtful debts and advances 8.53 315 . 538
Merger expenses 0.8 (0.18) : - -
Interest to Assaciated enterprises- 94B 61.43 (61.43) - s
Right ol use assel (ner) 6.97 (2.73) - - 4.24
MAT credit entitlement 46,66 (24.20) (22.46) - 0.00
Derivatives 0.10 . - (0.10) (0.00)
Gain on fair value measurement of mutual (330 (9.33) = (12.64)
funds
Total (Refer note 12) (210.23) (109.71H (22.46) {2.91) (343,310
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20 Earnings per share (EPS)

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

Profit for the year attributable to cquity sharcholders

Nominal value ol equity shares (Rs per share)

Weighted average number of equity shaves for the purposc of basic
carnings per share

Basic carnings per share (Rs)

Weighted average number of cquity shares for the purposc ol
diluted earings per share

Diluted earnings per share (Rs)

Computation of weighted average number of shares

427.65
10.00

9.17.07.801
4.606

9,17.07.801
4.66

311.64
10.00

9.17,07.801
3.40

9.17,07,801
3.40

Particulars

For the year ended
Murch 31, 2024

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

Number of cquity shares outstanding at the beginning of the yeat

Add: Weighted average number of equity shares issued during the year
Weighted average number of cquity shares for the purpose of basic
carnings per share

Add: Tmpact of potentially ditutive equity shares*

Weighted average number of equity shares for the purpose of
diluted carnings per share

9.17,07.801

9.17,07.801

9.17.07.801

9,17,07.801

9.17.07.801

9.17,07.801

* There are no dilutive instruments during the current year and previous year,

21 Financial instruments

The carrying valuc and (air value of financial instruments by calegories is as follows:

Carrying value

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

Financial assets
Measured at amortized cost

(i) Trade receivables 1.157.42 1.092.51
(i1) Cash and cash equivalents 240 93 221.64
(iti) Bank balances other than (ii) above 10.00 10.00
(iv) Others financial assets 24.14 43.86
Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss (Level 1)

(i) Investments 2.529.46 1,533.63
Total 3.961.95 2,901.64
Financial labilitics

Measured at amortized cost

(i) Lease liabilities 52.31 162.22
(ii) Trade payables 461.05 576.17
(1i1) Other tinancial liabilities 15931 12511
Total 672.67 863.50

i Chartered 4 o

%%,
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21

(i)

Financial instruments (continued)

Recognised (inancial Sensitivity analysis and Sculement ol
e assets and liabilities foreign exchange cxposures on nel basis
Market risk, foreign exchange not denominated in
INR

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resuiting in financial loss to the
company. Credit risk arises from cash held with banks and financial institutions, as well as ercdit exposure to clients,
including outstanding accounts reccivable. The maximum cxposurc to credit risk is equal o the carrying value of the
financial assets. The objective of managing counterparty credit risk is (o prevent losses in financial asscts. The company
assesses the credil quality of the counterpartics, taking into account their {inancial position, past experience and other
factors. The Company establishes an allowance for doublful debts and impairment that represents its estimate of expecled
losses in respect of trade and other receivables.

The management follows provisioning policy based on the ageing of oulstanding receivables. Basis review of receivables
composition management has concluded that impact of expected credit loss is not matcrial and current provision made
against such trade receivable is adequale to cover the provision en account of expected credit Joss.

Security deposits have negligible or nil risk based on past history of defaults and forward looking information.
(a) Trade receivables

The Company's exposure to credit risk for (rade reccivables by geographical region is as follows:
Carrving amount

As at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

India 644.76 711.68
us 177.20 124 97
Europe 345.66 269.73
Rest of the world 2.66 7.50
Total 1,170.28 1,113.88

Allowance for credit loss
The movement in the allowance for credit loss in respect of trade receivables is as lollows:

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Balance at the beginning of the year 21.37 24 41
Changes in the expected credit loss (8.51) (3.04)
Balance at the end of the year 12.86 21.37

(b) Cash and cash equivatents
The Company held cash and cash equivalents of Rs. 240.93 million as at March 31, 2024 and Rs. 221.64 million as at
March 31. 2023. The cash and cash cquivalents arc held with banks with high credit ratings assigned by international and
domestic credit rating agencics.
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Financial instruments (continued)

Fair valucs

Ind AS establishes a fair value hicrarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure (air value, The
hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assels or liabilitics (Level |
measurements) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 mcasurcrnents). The three levels of the fair value
hierarchy under Ind AS are described below:

Level 1 — inputs are based upon quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilitics which are
accessible as of the measurement date.

Level 2 — inputs are based upon quoted prices for similar assets o liabilitics in active markets. quoted prices for identical
or similar assets or liabilitics in markets that are not active and model derived valuations for the assct or liability that arc
derived principally from or corroborated by market data for which the primary inputs are obscrvable, including forward
interest rates. yield curves, credit visk and exchange ratcs.

Level 3 — inputs for the valuations are unobservable and are based on management’s cstimates ol assumptions that market
participants would usc in pricing the asset or lability. The fair values are therefore determined using model-based
techniques such as option pricing models and discounted cash flow models.

Measurement of Fair values

Financial instruments measured at fair

The following detaifs show the valuation techniques used in measur ing lair values:
i) Investments:

The company's investments consist primarily of investment in debt linked mutual funds. Fair valuc of debt linked mutual
funds arc bascd on prices as statcd by the issucrs of mutual funds and are classificd as Level | after considering whether
the fair value is readily determinable.

Fair value of financial assets and liabilitics measured at amortised cost

The carrying amounts of current financial assets / liabilitics recognised in the financial statements at amortised value,
approximate their fair values due (o their short-term nature.

The Fair value of non-current financial asscts & liabilitics approximates its carrying value.
Financial risk management

The Company's activitics cxposc it to a varicty of financial risks: market risk. credit risk and Hquidity risk. The Company's
primary focus is to foresee the unpredictability of financial markets and seek (o minimize potential adverse effects on its
financial performance. The primary market risk to the company is foreign exchange risk. The below tabte broadly
summarises the sources of financial risk to which the entity is exposed 1o and how the entity manages the risk :-

Exposure arising

Financial risk from Management of risk
Deposits with banks. Ageing  analysis,  Credit  ratings,
Credit risk trade receivables and Diversification of bank deposits, credit
other financial assets limits and review of ageing,
Financial Rolling plan Cash low and Monitoring

Liquidity risk liabilitics of liquidity position
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(i)

Financial risk management (continued)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in mecting the obligations associated with its
financial liabilitics that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company’s approach (o
managing liquidity is o cnsurc, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilitics
when duc, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to
the Company’s reputation,

The Company's principal sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents and the cash tlow that is generated
from operations.

The table below provides details regarding the undiscounted contractual maturities of significant financial
liabilitics as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023.

As at March 31, 2024

Particulars Less than 2 years

1 year 1-2 years andiabone Total
Lease liabilities 30.53 25.50 393 59.96
Trade payables 461.05 - - 461.05
Other financial liabilitics 159.31 . - 159.31
Total 650.89 25.50 3.93 680.32

As at March 31,2023

Particulars Less than 2 years

1 year -2 years and above Total
Lease liabilities 49.13 51.76 86.07 186.96
Trade payables 576.17 - - 576.17
Other ftnancial liabilitics 12511 - - 125.11
Total 750.41 51.76 86.07 888.24

(ifi) Market risk

(a)

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices - such as foreign exchange rates will affect the Company's
income. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposurcs within
acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.

Foreign currency risk

The Company’s exchange risk arises [rom its forcign carrency revenues and expenses, (primarily in US dollars
(USD) and Euro (EUR)). The exchange rate between the Indian rupee and these forcign currencies has changed
substantially in recent periods and may continue to fluctuate substantialfy in the future.

The volatility in foreign currency exposures is minimized by maintaining funds in EEFC accounts and by also
hedging the exposures through forward cover contracts.
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(a)

22

(b)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

The following table presents foreign currency risk [rom non-derivative financial instnuments as of Mareh 31.
2024 and March 31, 2023.

Currency As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Amount Amountin Amountin Amountin

Siartieulags in foreign INR foreign INR
currency  DMillion currency Million

Financial assets

Foreign currency lrade receivables usn 0.51 42.86 1.35 111,11
EUR 0.08 6.84 0.12 10.79

Cash and Bank Balanccs UsD 0.16 13.00 0.82 67.12
EUR 0.01 0.87 0.05 4.65

Net exposure to foreign currency risk (assets) 63.57 193.67

Financial Liabilitics

Foreign currency payables usD 0.07 578 0.27 22.01
EUR 0.75 67.39 0.54 47.77
AUD - - 0.05 2.71
SGD - - 0.07 432

Net exposure to forcign currency risk (liabilities) 73.17 76.81

Financial risk management (continucd)

Sensitivity analysis

A reasonably possible strengthening / (weakening) of the US Dollar, EUR, SGD and AUD against INR at March
31,2024 and March 31, 2023 would have afTected the measurement of financial instruments denominated in a
foreign currency and atfected profit or loss by amounts shown below:

Particulars Currency Asat 31 March 2024  As at 31 March 2023
Impact on profit * Impact on profit *
Increase  Decrease  TInerease  Decrease
by 5% by 5% by 5% by 5%

Foreign currency trade receivables UsD 2.14 (2.14) 5.55 (5.55)
EUR 0.34 (0.34) 0.63 (0.63)

Cash and Bank Balances USh 0.65 (0.65) 3.34 (3.34)
EUR 0.04 (0.04) 0.21 (0.21)

Foreign currency payables UsSD (0.29) 0.29 (1.13) 1.13
EUR (3.37) 3.37 (2.39) 2.39
AUD - . (0.13) 0.13
SGD - - (0.23) 0.23

* Holding all other variables constant

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair valuc or future cash fTows ol a [inancial instrument will fluctuale because
of changes in market interesl rates. Tnterest raie risk primarily arises from floating rate borrowing, including

various revolving and other lines of credit. The Company as at thelend of finangis tnes nol have any
exposure to significant intcrest risk.
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22 Financiai risk management (continued)

(c) Pricerisk

23

The Company’s exposurc lo mutual funds price risk arises from investments held by the Company and classified
in the balance sheet as fair valuc through profit or loss. To manage its price risk arising from investments in
mutual funds, the Company diversities its portfolio. Diversification of the partfolio is done in accordance with
the limits set by the Company. The impact of 5% increase/decrease of the net asset values of mutual fund. with all
other variables held constant, would be increase / decrease in profils by approximately INR 126.47 million (31
March 2023: 76.68 million).

Capital management

The Company's policy is 10 maintain a strong capital basc so as Lo mainlain inveslor, creditor and market
confidence and to sustain future development of the business. The Company’s objective when managing capital
is to maintain an optimal structure so as lo maximize sharcholder value,

The capital structure is as follows:

As at As at
Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,
2023
Leasc liabilities 52.31 162.22
Less: Cash and bank balances 250.93 231.64
Adjusted net debt - -
Total equity 11,592.12 11,140.22
As a percentage of total capital - -

The Company is debt and equity financed which is evident from the capital structure table, Further, the Company
has always been a net cash positive entity with cash and bank balances,

2 Chartered Aﬂoo
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24 Derivatives
Following is the derivative financial instruments to hedge the forcign exchange vate risk as of 31 March 2024

Forward Contracts Qutstanding {Amounts in millions)

Currency Notional Foreign

to Sell Coverage Currency
US dollar (contracts to scll USD/buy INR)
- designated as hedging instruments UsD - -
- not designated for hedge instruments usn - =
Euro (contracts to sell Euro/buy INR)
- designated as hedging instruments EUR -
- hat designisted for hedge instruments LUR -

Following is the derivative financial instruments to hedge the forcign exchange rale risk as of 31 March 2023:

Forward Contracts Qutstanding {Amounts in millions)

Currency Notional Forcign

to Sell Coverage Currency
US dollar (contracts to scll USD/buy INR)
- designated as hedging instruments UsD -
- nol designated for hedge instruments USD a
Euro (contracts to sell Euro/buy INR)
- designated as hedging instruments FEUR - -
- not designated fol hedge instruments LEUR - -

The movement in cash flow hedging reserve for derivatives designated as hedging instruments is as follows:
31 March 2024 |31 March 2023
Balance at the beginning of the year - (0.1%)
Change in the fair value of effective portion of cash flow hedges - gain(loss) - 0.28
Deferred tax on fair value ol eftective portion of cash flow hedges . (0.10)
Balance at the end of the year - Asset / (Liability) - -
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Contingent liabilities and commitments (to (he extent not provided for)
Aceounting policy
Contmgent liabilties aie reviewed at cach balanee sheet date and adjisted to refleet the current best estimates

Contingent bahility 1s a possihle obbgation (hat wises Gam the past events and the existence af which will be confirmed only by the oceutrence or non-
occurenee of one or more uncertain future cvents not whally within the contol af (he Company, o1 is a present obligation that aeises from past events but
is not recognised because cither it is not probable that an outflow of resourees embodying ceonumic benefits will be required 1o settle (he ubligation. or
weliable estimate of the amount of obligation cannot be made. Contmgent liabilities are disclosed amd ot recopnised. 1o the normal course of busmess,
contingent labililics muy anise fiom liigatian and ather claims against the Company. There are certaim obbgations which management has concluded.
based an alf available facts and circumstances. are not probable of pavment or are very difficult to quantify retiably. and such obligations are weated as
conlingent liabilities and disclosed in the notes but are nnt reflected as

abilities in the tinancial statements. Although there can be no assurance regarding
the final outcome of the Tegal proceedings in which the Company is involved, it is not expected that such contingeneics will have a matetial effect an his
financial pusition o prafitabiity

As at As at
Murch 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Particulirs

Contingent liuhilitics
Claims againsi the company not acknowledged as debt

- legal claims and litigations® S8.62 50.73
Toatal 58.62 30.73

* Outflow (il any) arising out of the said claim including interest (if any) would depend upon the outcome of the decision of the arbitration authority and
the Company's right for future appeal betore the judiciary.

The Ton'ble Supreme Cowt of India (*SC
employees should be identiticd for inclusion in basic wages for the puiposes of computalion of' Provident Fund contribution. Further, there are
interpretative challenges and considerable uncertainty, including estimating the amount retrospectively Pending directives from the EPFOQ, the impact for
pust periods. 1f any. is not ascentainable reliably and consequently no financial efiect has been provided for in the financial statements. The Company has
complied with the order of the Hou'ble 8C prospectively eflective | March 2019 by incliding such allowances for PE contiibution caleulations

by theit order dated 28 February 2019, set out the principles based on which allowances paid 1o the

The Company has ongoing disputes with income Lix authotities that are pending before satious judiciul orums i relation Lo g bealment of certim G
credits, expenses claimed as deduetions, levy of buy back taxes, computation and allowability of tix holidiy benefits, re-computation of Arms-Length
Price margins, cte. The management evaluated the inguiries! notices  orders: dennnds receved Tor the manters under dispute and concluded that the
Company's position will be upheld and there wtll not be adverse effect on the Campany's financial position and ifs results an ulktimate resalution of these
matters

Due to micra and small enterprises

The Company has principal amounts due (o suppliers wnder the Micio, Small and Medium Enterprises Desclopment Act, 2006 as at the Balance Sheel
date: The information regarding Micro and Small Enterprises given m Note 19 () - "Trade payables” bas been determined to the extent such pairties hive
heen identilicd on the basis of wformation collected by the Management based on enquiries made with the vendors

Details relating to Micrn and Small Enterprises.

As al As al

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 30, 2023

Principal amount due to supplicys registered wnder the MSMED Act and remiining wipaid as at year end

{Reler nate 10 (b)) 730 0.30
Interest due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Acl and remaming unpaid as at year end (Refer note

10 {cy) AR 244
Principal amounts paid o supplicrs registered under the MSMED Adt, beyond  the appointed day during (he

year

The amount ol mterest paid by the buyer in s ol section 16 of the Micro, Smadl and Medium Enterprises

Develapment Act, 2006 along with the amount of the payment made to the supplicr beyond the appomted

day duning each accounting year - -
Tnterest paid, other (han under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers repistered  under the MSMED Act,

beyond the appointed day during the yea

Amount of interest due and payable tor the period ol delay in making payment (which have been paid but

heyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specitied under the MSMED Act

Interest aceried and remaining unpaid at the end of cach accounting year 0.70
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, unlid such date when - -
the interest dues above arc acaully paid (o the small enterpiise, (or the purpose of disallowince of a

deductible expenditre under section 23 of the Micro. Snmall and Medium Faoterprises Developrient Act.,

2006.

to
¥
pr

Taxation

Transfer Pricing

The Company has established & comprehensive system of nainteminee of information and documents as tequired by the Wansti priciog legislation under
seetions 92-92F ol the Income Tax Act, 1961, Since the Taw regquues such information and decumentation o be contemporancous in nature. the Campany
would ensure documentation of Intermational transactions with the agsociated enterprises during the financial year and expeets such records to be m
existence latest by such date as required under law. The Company is of the opimon that its international transactions are at ann’s length so that the
aforesaid legislation will nat have any impact on the financial statements, particulirly on the amount ot tax expense and that of pravision for taxation
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List ol Related party transactions

List of related parties

) Uluaste Holding Company

: Capaeennm SE. France

) Holding Company

Capuennn Technology Services India Limited (fram June 7, 2023

¢} Subsidiavics

Gitobal Edge Sofware Limited

Aliran Engineering Solutions Tnc

Altran Engincering Solutions {Eusope) Lid.
Altian Frgineering Solutions Japan € onorgtion

d) Fellow subsidiarics and Other Companics
which docs nol exercise conlrol or significant
influence over the Company

© Alran Inteenational BV, Netherlnds (Attran Nethedands)
 Altran Innovacion SLU

+ Altan Deulschland 8.A S, & Co. KG

: Capgemini Fngincering Sverige AR

- Aluan Belgiom SA

S Capgemmi Portugal S A

: Sicon Design Fechnulogies (Shanghai) Co., Lid

: Capgemmi Amenea Ine

: Capgemini Ametica. Inc. (FS)

» Capgemmi Hong Kong Ltd

¢ Altran Prototypes Automobiles S A S

s Altran Lab S.ALS

* Aluan Technology &
¢ Aricent Technologics Malaysia Snd. Bhd

: CAPGEMIN] ENGINEERING ACT S.A S

: Altuan Technologics SA.L France

: Capgenunt Service $.ALS

: Capgemini UK Ple

. Capgemmi Nederland B.V

: Capgemini Tapan KK,

. Capgemini Sverige AB

: Cupyemini Ttalia S.P.A

: Capgenuni Engincering Rescarch and Dexelopment SAS
: Capgenuni Belgium N V /S A

Tt CAPG
: Sopeti §
: Capgemim Deutschland GMBH

: Capgemini Technology Services, France
: Capgemnn Swisse S A

. Capgemini Australia Pry Limited

o Aluan Slovakia s. . o.

1 Sogett Deutschland GMBHH

: Capgemmni Danmark A/S

: Capgemni Singapote Ple. Lid

: Capgemini Canadu Inc

ngineering Cenler SAS

EMINT ESPANA, S L.
verige AB

¢) Key Manugement Personnel

Mr, Sujit Sitcat (Director)

* M Williwm ROZE (Director)

Mr. Jean Philippe BOL (Director)
Mr. Rajesh Nedadur (Director) (From June 9. 2023 o January 31, 2024)

Particulars For the year ended Fur the year ended
h March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Transactions during the year

#) Revenue - Revenue from services®

Holding company

- Capgemini Technology Services India Ltd 726,36 93331

Subsidiaries

- Aluan Engincering Solutions Inc. 96,87 17483

- Altrany Engineering Solutions lapan Corporation - 1.1

- Global Edge Software Limited 5.24 13,47

Fellow Subsiduies and Other Companies

- Altran Technologies SA, France 25199 256.21

- Alban Deutschland SAS & Co KG 136,74 11799

- Altvan Innovacion SLU 1006

- Stcon Design Technalogies (Shangha) Co., Lid Q17
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List of Related purty transactions (continucd)

pardeulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 Blarch 31,2023
#) Revenue - Revienue (rom services*®
= Altran Belgivm SA - 7.3%
- Capgemini Engincering Sverige AB 2720 58.22
= Capgemini Hong Kong Ld 042 -
- Altran Nethertands - 1.76
= Altran Prototypes Automobiles S.A.S 1366 24.28
- Altran Lub SAS 347
= Aticent Technologies Malaysia Snd. Bhd. s 052
= CAPGEMINI ENGINEERING ACT S.A.S 38746 487 42
- Capgemini America Ine 67897 422.00
= Capgemini UK Ple 152 11 141.29
= Capgemin Nederland B V. 7714 66,28
- Capgemini Japan K.K, 1572 9.16
- Capgemini Svenge AB 1563 183
- Capgemini talia S.p.A 157.35 160,25
= Capgemini Engineering Rescarch and Development 4128 6.40
= Capgemini Service S.ALS 2135 1575
= Capgeniim Belgiom NLVUS A, 8.99 411
- Capgemini Espafia, S L 64 36 13.4]
- Sogeti Sverige AB 036 .36
= Capgemini Deutschland GMBI . 1.34
- Capeemini Technology Scrvices, Franee 4.53 0,63
- Capgemin Suisse S A 1.53 0.6l
- Capgeming Ausuialiy Pty Lamited 1.74 0.5%
= Altran Slovakia . 1. o, e 1.44
= Capgenint Canada Inc, 2992 36.75
= Capgemini Dunmark A/S 132 -
- Capgemini Partugal S A 20.69 =
- Capgenum America, Inc. (FS) 1.2%
- Aluan Technology & Engineering Cenler SAS 0.46
- Capgemini Singapore Ple. Ltd 015 -
= Sogeti Dewtsehland GMBIt 6.66 0.24
Tatal 3.029.4% 294235
Nute:

* Revenue from services shown above includes reimbursement of out o pocket expenses by customers of Re 2 77 million 131 March 2023:

4.37 million)

b} Expenses cross charged® For the vear ended For the yvear ended
Mareh 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Talding vonpprn

- Capgemini Teclnology Services India Limited 1,795 09 1,783.02

Subxidiciodyw

- Global Gdge Soitwarc Limited 1.65 3.20

Fellow Subsidiarics

= Alran (Singapore) Pre, Lid - 4.75

- Altran Technologics SA, France 4912 109.16

- CAPGEMINI ENGINEERING ACT S.AS 0.587 R16

- Capgemin Service S AS 11742 112.09

- Capgemini Enginceting Sverige AB 040 -

- Cappemini Austialia Pty Limited - 304

Tatal 1.964.85 2,1123.42

fee and others

inclittes expense m the nature of software and hardware expenses, taining aml reeqnmen, sub=<contrieiime cxpenses. group management

[2] Purchase of fixed assets

Fellow Suhsidiarive
= Cappenim Teehnology Serviees India Limited

707

¢) Key Managerial Personnel

Remuneration®
Rajesh Nedadur

- Shoit term employee benelits

352

*Managerial remuneration does not include cost of employec henefits such as gratuity, comperisated absences since provisions for these are

based on an actuarial valuation carried out for the Company as a whote
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List of Related party transactions (continued)

Balanee Outstangling as at the yvear end

Particulars

As at

March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

a} Trade receivables
llolding company
- Capgemim Technology Services India Ll

76.00 79.92
Subswdiarics
- Altn Engincering Solutions Ine 1705 17.30
- Glohal Edge Soliwae Limited 022 200
Fellow Swhsidinries
- Altian Technologies SA, France 5528 48,91
- Altran Deutsehland SAS & Co KG 20,27 2312
- Capgemini Engineering Sverige AR 71y w6
- Sicon Design Technologivs (Shanghai) Co., Lid 071 1,71
- Aluan Prototypes Automobiles S ALS 254 3.63
- Altran tab S.AS, ] 0.2y
- Aricent Technologies Malaysia Snd. Bhd . 052
- CAPGEMINT ENGINEERING ACT S A S 2503 §3.13
- Capgemint America Ine 129.52 89,74
- Capgemini America Inc (FS) 0,73 -
- Capgemini UK Ple 793 1354
- Capgemini Nederland BV 1007 14 76
- Capgemini Japan KK, 208 520
- Capgemin Sverige AB 745 090
- Capgeniini Ttatia S.p.A 2283 47.61
- Capgemini Engineering Rescarch and Develapment
SAS 630 182
- Altran Slovakia s 1 o . L07
- Capgemini Canada [nc, 820 6.01
- Capgemini Technology Services, France n.86
- Capgemini Service SAS 31.86 516
- Capgemini Belgium N V./S A 1 49 141
- Sogeti Deutsehland GmbH - 0.24
- Capgemini Cspaia, S.L 1415 4.29
- Sogen Sverige AB - 0.19
- Capgemini Denmark A/S 1.39
- Capgenum Portugal § A 20.69
- Capgemim Singapore Pte Lid 0.16
- Capgemim Suisse S A 030 -
- Capgemini Hong Kong Limited 042
- Capgemini Australin Pty Ltd 0.03
- Capgemini Deutsehland GmbH 000 (0.01)
Total 442.68 459.64
b) Other current assets- Advance to suppliers
Sulvsacliin rex
= Global Cdge Software Limited - 1.75
Fellow Subsidiaries
- Altran Technologres SA, France = 13.40
Tatal - 15,18
©) Trade receivables- Unhilled
Holtling compan
- Cupgc:-mini Fechnelogy Serviees Tndis Lid 8425 E
Fellow Subsidinries
- Capgemint ltaha S.p.A 2%.72 :
- Capgenuni America e 2102 E
= Altran Technologics SA, France Il 64 E
- Alttan Deutschland SAS & Co K¢ 2437
= Cappemin UK Ple 2503 B
- Capgemini Nederland BV 9.30
- Capgemini Espaita, S.L 590 E
- Capgenmini Engincenng Sverige AB 7.97 B
- Capgenini Sverige AB R 79 -
- Capgemini Engincering Rescarch and Development
SAS 11.6n 1.4
Total 238.54 §.44
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()

()

(c)

(d)

Ewplayee benefits plan
Accounting policy

Short-term employee benefits

Aiahility is recagmised for benefits acerting to eployees in respeet of way and annual Jeave in the period the related service is remdered
at the undiscounted amoum of the benefits expeeted w be pand in exchange for that service, Liablitic recognised in respeet of shor-term eimplovee
benelits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected 1o be paid in exchange for the related service.

Compensated Ahsences

The employees an canry=forwaed a portion of the wnuilised scerued compensated absences and utitise it in future service periods or 1eceive cash
campunsation on lermination of employment. The obligation in respeet of compensated absences is provided on the basis of an actwuial valuation
carricd out by an independent actuary using the Piojected Unit Credit Method, which tecogmzes cach pernod of service as giving tise t an additional
unit of employee bencelit entitlement and measures cach unit sepaiately to huild up the final obligaton. The obligation is measured at the present value of
estinaled future cash Nows. The discount rates used tor determining ihe present value of the abligation under defined benetit plan is based on the markel
yields as at the balance sheet date on Guvernment securilies. havmg matwity periods approximating 1o the terms of the related obligations. To the extent
the Company does oot have an unconditional right to defer the utilization o1 cacashment o the accunwlaled compensated absences, the liability
determinud bascd on actuarial valuation is considered 10 be a curent liabilicy

Defined cuntribution plans

The Company Ias defined contribution plans (where the Compuny pays pre-defined amounts and docs not have any further obligation o pay additional
sums) for post-employment benefits (viz. Peovident Fund). and the Company’s contributions thereto me charged to (he statement of mofit and loss
every yeir

Defined Benefit Plans

In accordance with the Payment of Grutuity Act, 1972, the Company provides for a lup sum payment to eligible employees, ul retirement or
termimation of employment based on the last drawn salary and yems of employment with the Company. The Company's obligatian in respect of the
gratuity plan. which is a defined benefit plan, is provided for based on actuarial valuation using the projected wnit credil method. The grawity fund is
managed by the Lile Insurance Comoration of India (LIC)

The ealeulation of the Compuny’s obligation is performed annually by i qualiticd acary using the Projected Unit Credit Method. ‘The present value of
the obligsion under sueh henefit plan is determined based vn an sewarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method which recopiizes cach
period of service that gives nise o additional ume af emplogiee benefit entitlement and measwies each unit scparately 1o build up the final obligation. The
discounted rates used for determuning the present value are based on the market yiclds on Governmeni seeuritics as at the balance sheet date

I'he net interest cost 1s caleulated by applymg the discount rate 1o the nel opening balance ol the defined benetit obligation and the fair value of plan
assets Tess estimated employer contribution for the next fimancial year, Tlns cost is included in employee benelit expel
Lass. Remeasurement gains and losses ansing from expenence adji
they oceur, direetly in other comprehensiv

ses in the Statement of Profit and
tments and changes 0 actuarnal assumptions are recogniscd mothe pernod m which

¢ income. All other expens ted to defined benefit plan is recopnised in eoployee benetit expense in the
Statement of Profit and Loss. Past serviee cost bath vested and unvested is teeognised as an expense at the carlier of {a) when the plan amendnient o
curtailment nceurs, and (b) when the entity recognises related restructuing cost or termination benefits. The Company recognises gums and losses on the
curtailment or settlement ol a defined benelit plan when the curtaitment or seilement oceurs

Remeasurements comprising actuarial gains or loss
perieds

s and relum on plan

@

ets (excluding net interest) are not reclassified w profic o1 loss in subsequent

The Company contributes to the following post-cmployment benefit plons in ndia -
{f) Defined Contribution Plans:

Ihe Company operates detined contnbution plans (siz Provident Fand. Employee Pension Scheme (EPS), Nittanal Pension Scheme (NPSY. Speetlicd
Contribution towards provident fund lor eligible employees ae made to 1he regulatry authoritics und the Company has no further obligitions. The
Company recognised Rs. 12830 million (2022-23 : Re. 14522 million) fur provident fund. EPS, NPS conuibutions wnd related expenses in the
statement of profit and loss

(i1} Defined Benellt Plans:

(2) Gratuity

The Company operates defined benefit pfan (viz. Giatuity) covering cligible employees in accordance with the Py

Company’s liability 1s actuarially determined (usimg the Projected Uit Credit Cast Method) a1 the e of ench year. Actuarial g
recognised under other comprehensive inncome,

rment of Gratuity Act, 1972, The
ains? losses are
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Employce benefits plan (continued)
{ii) Defined Benefit Plans: {tontinued)
(a) Gratuity (continued)

Amount reeogmved in the stalement of profit and loss in respect of gratuily cost (delined benefit plan) is as Follows:

For the year ended

Carticutars For the year ended
Mareh 31, 2024 Mlurch 31, 2021
Current service cost 325 1441
[nterest cost §.22 10.87
Net Giraluily cost recognized in statement nf profit and losy 40,80 43.28

Amount recogmed in other comprehensive mcome in respeet sl gty vost (defined benelit plan) is as follows:

For the year ended
Maveh 31, 2024

Particulars

For the vear ended
March 31,2023

Actuarial (gain)floss on account of experence adjusiments (6.50) 120
Actuarial (gain)/loss arismy from chunge in demographie assumptions (4 83) (7.10)
Actuarial (gain)loss ansing from change in financral assumptions 1.57 (4.23)
Return on plan asscts not included in interest meome (.00 (0l
Net Gratuity cost recognized In othe camprchensive income (11L25) (15.54)
Assumptiong

For the year ended For the vear ended
Particulars :

Mureh 31, 2024 Murch 31, 2023

Interest mte 7.15% 7.30%
Salary increase 7.00% 7.00%

65 years for those hircd 65 yewrs for those hired

§t ; Y 202
Retirement age before 1 January 2020,

before | January 2020,

60 for those hued on ar 60 for those hired on or

after 1 Liuary 2020

Mortalny rare IALM 1201214y

| Jauary 2020

TALM [2012-14)

The estimates of Tuture salary increases, considered in actuacial valuation. kes mto account inflation, senioity, promotion and ather relevant factors

such as supply and demand factors in the cmployment market

The expected return on plan assels is based on expectation of the average lony term 1ute of remn expeeted on investiments of the fund during the
L i f u

estimated term of the ubligations.

The following table sets out the status of the gratuity plan

As at
Mareh 31, 2024

Particulars

Ax at
March 31,2023

Change in projected benefit abligations

Obligations at the beginning of the perind 168.97 171.51
Servic 3258 3441
Intere .07 13.3
Benel (2%.05) (3481
Actuariut (uin)/loss - expericnce (6.90) (4 20y
Actuarial (gain)loss ~ demographic assumptions {4 8% (709
Actuarial (gain)toss — financial assumptions 1.57 (4.22)
Obligations af the end of the perfod 174.41 168.97
Change in plan assets
Plan assets at the beginning ol the period, at fair vatue .27 3676
Interest income 287 2.50
Re-measurement - actuarial gnind(loss) 1,09 .01
Plan assets at the end of the period, at fair value 42.23 .27
Net Liahility recognived
Particulurs Ardt
Mureh 31, March 31, 2023
Present vilue of defined benefit abligation (17441 {(16R.97)
Fair Value ol plan assels 42.23 39.27
Net Linhility recopnized (132.18) (129.70)
Cinremt 3 =
Non curtein 1132.15) 1129710
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29 Employee henefits plan (continued)
(ii} Defined Benefil Plans: (continned)
(a) Gratnily (continued)
Sensitivity analysis

Reasonably possible changes at the 1eporting date 1o one of the reles ant actuarisl assumpuons, holding other assumptions constant, would have affecied
the delined benefit obligation by the smoumts shown betow:

As al Asaf(
Partlculary NMurch 31,2024 March 31,2023
Tnerease Decrease Inerease Decrease
Dhscomnt rate (0 S0% movement) (513 545 1402) ing
Futare =aliry growth (5.30% inos cment) 487 {4.73] 422 13.851
Maturity prafile of defived benelit oblipation:
Particulars pOE] S
Murch 31, 2004 March 31. 2023
Within | year 34 60 3434
1-2yewrs 26.14 3026
2-3 years 2376 25.90
3 -4 years 2103 2307
4.5 yeurs 1681 2042
S5- 10 years 5039 5435
More than 10 Years 129 85 7215

As at Mareh 31, 2020, 10075 of the jilan assets were invested in msier snanaged Tuds
Expected contnbutions to post employment benelit (gratuity plans) for year ending 31 Maich 2025 are Rs, 34.60 milhon,

(b) Compensated absences:
Compensated absences as at the Balance Sheet dale, deteimined on the basis of actuaial v aluation based oo the "projected unit eredit method®

For the year ended For the year ended
Purtientury N N
Marel 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Non-cireent provision - -
Current privwision 172 9% 17836
172 98 | 7% .36

The cntire amount of the provision of INR 172,98 nuthion (31 March 2023; INR 178 36 million) is presented as current, since the Company does not
have an unconditional right to defer settlement for any ol these obligations. However, based on past experience, the Company does not expeed all
vrployees to avail the full amount of aceried leave or tequire payment for such leave within the next 12 months

For the year ended For Ihe year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
l_‘nm;wumlml abwenges ahbigitms mol expevted o be seitled withion the aest 12 oot L6y 11699
Assumplions
Purticulurs For the year ended Far the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
[nterest rate 7151 730
Salary increase 7.00% 700

63 years for those hircd 63 vears for those hired
Retirement age |)L’|.(?I\.' | Junmf(y 2020, huﬁ?(c | Janu;gry?_UZﬂ.

6 Tor those hired on or 60 for those bited on o

alter | Junwary 2020 after 1 January 2020
Motlality ratc TALM (2012-14) 1ATM (2012-14)
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Segment Reporting
Aceounting policy

The Company operates primarily in a single business segment of providing business solutions that leverage technology. thereby enabling clicats to enhance
business performance delivered to customers globally.

Based on the "management approach” us delined in Ind AS 108 - Operating Segments. the Board of Directors have been identified as the Chicl Operating
Decision Maker (CODM). The Company is primarily engaped in providing engincering consultuncy services. The CODM considers the Company as one
single reportable scgment

Allthe fixed assets of the Company are located in India. Custoner refationships arc derived based on the location of the 1espective customers,

(i) Segment information by geographical area:
For the year ended March 31, 2024

Rest of the

Particulars Tndia America Europe Total
world

Segment revenue

Salc of services 331687 Radd. 2y 1.531.2) 19.96 §i712:32

Total segment revenne 331687 844.28 1.531.21 19.96 8.712.32

For the vear ended March 31, 2023

H 8 ) Rest of t]
Particulars India America Furope R Total
world

Segment revenuc
Sale of services 4.209.52 847.37 1,435.50 51.37 0.543.76

Total scgment revenue 4,209.52 847.37 1,435.50 51.37 6,543.76

ii. Segment non-current assets:
All non-current assels appearing in the bulance sheet are peraining Lo peography of India region, i.e. principal place of operation.

iit. Disclosure of revenues from transactinns with 2 sinple external customer amounting to 10 per cent or maore of an entity’s revenues:
There is one external customer (Bosch Global Software Technologics Pyt Ltd) amounting to Rs. 629.16 million (31 March 2023: 672 million) motc than 10%
of the Company's revenue.
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31 Corporate Social Responsibility

The CSR committee of the Board is responsible for overseeing the execution ol the Company's CSR Policy. The CSR commitiee
comprises (wo directots.,

The linancial details as sought by the Companics Act. 2013 for the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 are as follows -

Particulars Fur the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Average net profit of the Company lor the lust three Hnancial years 1535.61 200.71
Prescribed CSR expenditure (2% of the average net profit as computed above) 7.1 4.01
Total amount to be spent for the financial yew 7.1 4.01
Amount spent 8.54 4.01

Amount unspent

4. Amount required to be spent by the company 7.1 4.01
b. Amount of cxpenditure incurred 8.54 4.08
¢. Excess spend during the year 1.43 0.07

d. Shortfall at the end of the year
c. Total of previous years shortfull
[ Reason for shortfall

14

¢ Nauwure of CSR activitics CSR program undertaken 1o provide|CSR progiam undertaken
cducation & access o allorduble|lo provide cducation &
technology to cquip children with{aceess 0 alfordable
essental skills like problem solving &iechnology  to cquip
critical thinking children  with  essential
skills like problem
h. Details of related parly transactions,
¢.g., contribution Lo a trust controlled by
the company in relation 10 CSR
expenditure as per relevant AS

32 Employce stock compensation plans
Accounting policy
Performance and employment linked share plan

Capgemini SE, the ultimate parent company has allocated performance and employment linked shaves of the ultim
to the employees of the Company The grant of such performance and employment linked shares relate 1o the
ultimale parent company and has no impact on the Company's share capital. Upon vesting of these
company techarge the cost of acquisition of these shares to (he Company,

atlc parent company
share capital of the
shares, the ultimate parent

In accordance with Ind AS 102 - Sharc-based payments the Company has recognised these compensation cosls based on cquity
method. Accordingly. these employees stock-based awards' were valued at fair value as al granl date. The stock-based awards”
compensation expenses are recognised under “Employee benefit expense” in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a stiaight-line basis
over the vesting period wilh a corresponding credit to share-based payment reseeve in other equity. On reccipt of recharge invoice for
a particular plan from the ultimate parent company, the Company utilises the credit available in share-based payment reserve against
such plan. Any excess recharge by the ultimate parent company is adjusted in retained eamings.

Employee share ownership plan

Capgemini SE. the uitimate parent company, has set up an employee share ownership plan, where eligible employees of the Company
were invited to subscribe 1o the shares of the ultimate parent company at a discount of 12.5% o the current market price of the
ultimate parcat company shares. The grant of such option relates to shae capital of Group company and has no impact on the
Company's share capital. Accordingly, expenses relating 1o these employee share ownership plan are recognised under “Employee
Benefits Txpense”™ m the Statement of Profit ind Loss on a straight-line basis over the vestir

ng period with a correspanding credit to
Emplayee stock uption reserve in other equity
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32 Employce stock compensation plans (continued)

(i) Pursuant to the acquisition of the Altran Group by Capgemini SE, the cmployecs of the Company were entitled to participate in share
based awards of the ullimate parent company (Capgemini SE) wherein performance units are issucd by Capgemini SE. Costs
pertaining Lo share-based awards issued to the Company’s employees are cross charged by the ultimate parent company. Such
expenses are accounted for, as part of cmployee benefits and the liabitity to the ultimate parent company is settled in cash. Although
the share bused awards are issved and administered by Capgemini SE. The features of the performance shares plan are set out below:-

During the current year and previous year, Capgemini SE recharged the Group the cost ol acquiting such shares for scttlement to the
employees for the below plans. Consequent to this, the Group recognises the compensation cost for these ESOP plans using equily
method in accordance with Ind AS 102 - Share based payments. Consequent to this, the Company has recognised a share-based
payment reserve of Rs. 37 52 million as on 31 March 2024 (31 March 2023 : Rs 2094 million).

Table below sets out the stock option activity of the various employee stock option plans (ESOP) under which Capgemini SE granted
stock nptions to the Group's emplovees

As at As at

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31,2023

2020 Plan 2021 Plan 2022 Plan 2023 Plan 2027 Plan 2022 Plan

Grant date Oclober 7, October 6. October 3. November  |October 6, October 3.
2020 2021 2022 5,2023 2021 2022
Performance assessment dates Three years - Three years  Three years  Three years | Three years  Three years

for the fow  for the four  for the four Tor the Towr |for the four  for the four
performance performance performance petfvmance{performance performance
conditions  conditions  canditions  conditions conditions  conditions

Vesting period 4ycusas dycarsas  dycarsas  Iycarsas |4 ycarsas 4 ycars as
from the  [rom the from the from the from the from the
grantdate  grantdatc  grantdatc  grantdate  |grantdate  grant date

Total numbers of aptions outstanding at opening date 2500 3340 6600 0 3900 0

Total numbers of options granted dwing the year 4] 0 0 1410 0 6800

Options exercised 0 0 {1 0 0 0

Options forfeited or cancelled during the year -2000 -1000 -980 -280 =360 -200

Total number of options outstanding at closing date 500 2340 5620 1130 3340 6600

Weighted average remaining contractual lile (in years® 0,5 1.5 25 1.58 2.5 s

Piicing madel used to calculate the fair value of share: Monte Monte Curlo Monte Carlo Monte Carlo|Monte Carlo Monte Carlo
Carlo for  for for for for for
performanc performance performance performunce|performance performance
¢ shares shares with  shares with  shares with [shares with  sharcs with
with cxternal external external external external
external tmarket) (market) (market) (market}) tmatket)

(market)  conditions  conditions  conditions  |conditions  conditions
conditions

Fair values of performance conditions (Furo) 92.57 156.05 141.8 136.8 156.05 141y
Main market conditions at grant date :
Volalility 29.61% 30.97% 31.24% 28 36% 30.971% 31.24%

Risk fice interest rate -0.499% to -0.4246% to 2.8360% to  3.0600% to |-01.4246% to 2 8360% ta
0.4615%  0.2605% 2.9520%  3.7168%  [0.2605% 2.9520%
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32 Employ ce stock compensation plans (continued)

Particulars

As at
Mireh 31, 2024

Asal
Nureh 31, 2023

2020 Plan

2021 Plan 2022 Plan

2023 Plan

2021 Plan 2022 Plan

Expecled dividend rte
Charge for the year tn INR Mn

Share based payment reserve

1.60% 1.60% 1.60% 2
1.56 272 1046 |
1.560 14 34 19.00 !

00% 1.60% 1 60%
10 7.59 R 54
A0 11.62 854

(ii} Capgemim SE, the ultimate parent company, has set up an employee share ownership plan. where eligible employees of the Group
were invited 1o subscribe to the shares of the ultimate parent company at a discount of 12 5% 1o the current market price of the
ultimate parent company shares. The ultimate parent company issued shares under cmployee ownership plans listed below. The
charge for the year for these plans aic as below:

Particulars L .
Moarch 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
2020 2021 2022 2023 2020 2021 2022
Employee | Employce | Employee | Employee | Employee | Employee Employce
ownership | ownership [ ownership | ownership | ownership ownership | ownership
plan plan plan plan plan plan plan
MNumber of shares 809 570 710 599 809 570 710
Charge for the ycar in INR Mn 019 0.23 026 0.06 019 023 0.06
Emplayees Stock Option reserve in INR
Mn 0.62 0.52 0.32 0.06 0.43 029 0.06

The Company has used Tair value method [or accounting of the above employee stack oplions
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33 Financial ratios

o oS N —

Numerator  Denominator  31-Mar-24  31-Mar-23 Variance

Current ratio ' Current Current 4.12 3.02 36%
assets l1abilities
Debt-cquily ratio Tolal debt ' Sharcholder's 0.00 0.01 -69%
equity
Debt service coverage ratio ’ Equity Debt service " 8.58 441 95%

carnings

available for

debt service "

Return on equily ratio * Netprofits  Average 3.76% 2.84%, 32%
after taxes  sharcholders'
equity
Trade receivables turnover catio Revenue Average trade 5.08 6.14 -17%
reecivables
Trade payables turnover ratio Purchasc of  Average trade 4.52 4.27 6%
other payablcs

expenses and

services ™

Net capital tumover ratio Revenue Working 1.73 2.76 -37%
capilal

Net profit ratio o Nel profits  Revenue 7.49% 4.76% 57%
aller taxes

Return on capital employcd Farmings Capital 4.99%, 5.17% -3%
before cmployed *
nlerest,  lax
and

Return on other investments (ROT)
Mutual Funds * Return on Average 7.87% 5.43% 45%
mutual funds Investment in
Mutual funds

Fixed deposits © Intereston Avcrage 1.10% 0.71% 55%
Fixed Investment in
deposits Fixed deposils

Reason for variance more than 25%:

Due to increasc in investiment in mutual funds

Duc to decreasc in Icasce liabilities

Debt service coverage ratio: Increase duc to higher PAT and lower lease debt repayment when compared to previous year,
Due to increase in profit afier tax in current year as compared Lo previous year.

Due to decrease in revenue and increasc in working capital as compared to previous year.

Due to higher PAT and lower revenue when compared (o previous year

ROT on mutual funds: Increase in investible surplas from previous year 1534 million to current year 2529 million,
Return on Fixed deposits: [ncrease duc to lower average investment in Fixed dcposits as compared to previous year,

Notes:
Total Debt represents only lease liabilities

i Earnings available for debt scrvice = Net Profit after taxes + Non-cash operating expenses —Lease Interest +Interest

on Debentures+ Unrealised losscs -Unrealised gains+ other adjustments like loss on sale of Fixed assets etc,
(=3 J

i Debt service represents Lease payments for the current year
/ Purchase of olher expense and services = Other expense -Loss on sale of fixed assets -CSR expenses -Bad debts

writlen off -Allowance for doubtful debts+ Staff wellare services
Capital employed = Tangiblc net worth + Delerred tax liabilitics + Lease Liabilitics
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34 Nole an inerger with Cageemini Techantos Services India Limited
[he Uotdmg company (Capgemini | sctmology Serviees lndia [ imieds Gled an appl
238 1w 232 of the Campanies Act. 2000 The meeger scheme wae adenied by 1he Cumpany £ Noard of Duetctors on Ut Decosher Y025

Apnl 2028 The mater a5 pendeng betore he NCU T ad appeds at 155 aw e ol

35 Other ceeutatury infacmation

Ltilisatinn af horrawed famiby and share premimg

The Cpergrany fizanot advanced on loanad or wisasteéed fiantls 1o any ather perdotis ar subilics, chrding forsign ey Hntema sdearesharh e und

ety o unelincealy Rend or mvest in other putsams or cotries el e any wrtaiyr whatsoss or by of on bvhattorthe conpam (Llimare Nen
b e mn giamies. seeunly i ihe ke 10 Gr pm el of e Uinmate Bancticiaties

Ihe Compun has 1ot revened aoy fund Trom ans persans or ai

ha the Cnpany shall

1y ducetly ur ivdersetly. lend or imest i other persans or entities sheandicd w aity maneee whitsoes et b o on behal of the Fiowhn

fibpeovide oy gnarantee sceurnts ue the ke anbehalfof the Uhimane Benclicriies
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